6.

A meeting of the CABINET will be held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER,
PATHFINDER HOUSE, ST MARY'S STREET, HUNTINGDON PE29
3TN on THURSDAY, 27 APRIL 2006 at 11:30 AM and you are
requested to attend for the transaction of the following business:-

MINUTES (Pages 1 - 2)

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 20th
April 2006. (TO FOLLOW).

MEMBERS' INTERESTS

To receive from Members declarations as to personal and/or prejudicial
interests and the nature of those interests in relation to any Agenda
item. Please see Notes 1 and 2 below.

FINANCIAL MONITORING
(a) REVENUE BUDGET (Pages 3 - 4)

To consider a report by the Head of Financial Services outlining
spending variations.

(b) CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2005/06 (Pages 5 - 16)

To consider a report by the Head of Financial Services
highlighting variations from the approved Capital Programme for
2005/06.

BROUGHTON CONSERVATION AREA: CHARACTER STATEMENT
AND MANAGEMENT PLAN CONSULTATION DOCUMENTS (Pages
17 - 18)

To consider a report by the Planning Policy Manager seeking approval for
consultation purposes of a Character Statement and Management Plan for
Broughton.

BROOKSIDE, HUNTINGDON - URBAN DESIGN FRAMEWORK
(Pages 19 - 24)

To consider a report by the Planning Policy Manager on responses received
to consultation on the draft Urban Design Framework for Brookside,
Huntingdon and seeking approval for the adoption of a revised framework as
Interim Planning Guidance.

OXMOOR (HUNTINGDON) PROPERTY ACTION PLAN - UPDATE
(Pages 25 - 28)

Contact
(01480)

C Bulman
388234

E Smith
8157

S Couper
8103

S Couper
388103

C Surfleet
388476

C Surfleet
388476



10.

To consider a report by the Head of Legal and Estates on an update on
the Oxmoor (Huntingdon) Action Plan and seeking authority undertake
land transactions.

CAR PARKING ORDER - OAK DRIVE, HUNTINGDON (Pages 29 -
30)

To consider a report by the Head of Environment & Transport on the
outcome of consultation on proposals to introduce a new car parking
order for the new Oak Drive off-street car park at Sapley Square,
Huntingdon.

HOUSING ACT 2004 - IMPLEMENTATION AND ENFORCEMENT
(Pages 31 -72)

To consider a report by the Head of Environmental and Community
Health seeking delegated authority to undertake duties under the

Housing Act 2004.

IMPLEMENTING ELECTRONIC GOVERNMENT (IEG) STATEMENT
2006 (Pages 73 - 102)

To consider a report by the Head of Information Management seeking
approval for submission of the Council’'s Implementing Electronic
Government (IEG) Statement 2006 to the Office of the Deputy Prime
Minister.

SAFETY ADVISORY GROUP (Pages 103 - 106)

To consider the report of the meeting of the Safety Advisory Group
held on 1st March 2006.

Dated this 11th day of May 2006

D e

Chief Executive

K Phillips
388260

C Allen
388380

J Allan
388281

C Hall
388116

H Lack
388006



Notes

1. A personal interest exists where a decision on a matter would affect to a greater extent
than other people in the District —

(& the well-being, financial position, employment or business of the Councillor, a
partner, relatives or close friends;

(b) a body employing those persons, any firm in which they are a partner and any
company of which they are directors;

(c) any corporate body in which those persons have a beneficial interest in a class of
securities exceeding the nominal value of £5,000; or

(d)  the Councillor's registerable financial and other interests.

2. A personal interest becomes a prejudicial interest where a member of the public (who has
knowledge of the circumstances) would reasonably regard the Member's personal
interest as being so significant that it is likely to prejudice the Councillor's judgement of
the public interest.

Please contact A Roberts, Democratic Services Officer, Tel No. 01480 388009/e-mail
Anthony.Roberts@huntsdc.gov.uk if you have a general query on any Agenda Item,
wish to tender your apologies for absence from the meeting, or would like information
on any decision taken by the Committee/Panel.

Specific enquiries with regard to items on the Agenda should be directed towards the
Contact Officer.

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers except during
consideration of confidential or exempt items of business.

Agenda and enclosures can be viewed on the District Council’'s website —
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk (under Councils and Democracy).

If you would like a translation of Agenda/Minutes/Reports
or would like a large text version or an audio version
please contact the Democratic Services Manager and
we will try to accommodate your needs.

Emergency Procedure

In the event of the fire alarm being sounded and on the instruction of the Meeting
Administrator, all attendees are requested to vacate the building via the closest emergency
exit and to make their way to the base of the flagpole in the car park at the front of Pathfinder
House.




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 1

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

MINUTES of the meeting of the CABINET held in the Council
Chamber, Pathfinder House, St Mary's Street, Huntingdon PE29 3TN
on Thursday, 20 April 2006.

PRESENT: Councillor | C Bates — Chairman.
Councillors Mrs J Chandler, N J Guyatt,
A Hansard, Mrs P J Longford,
Mrs D C Reynolds, T V Rogers and
L M Simpson.

APOLOGY An apology for absence from the meeting
was submitted on behalf of Councillor
D P Holley.

200. MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting held on 6th April 2006 were approved as
a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

201. MEMBERS' INTERESTS

No declarations were received.

202. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC
RESOLVED

that the press and public be excluded from the meeting
because the business to be transacted contains exempt
information which relates to individuals and is likely to reveal
the identity of the individuals concerned.

203. OPERATIONAL SERVICES DIRECTORATE: APPOINTMENT OF
HEAD OF PLANNING SERVICES

Councillor L M Simpson reported on the outcome of the meeting of
the Appointments Panel which had interviewed short-listed
candidates for the post of Head of Planning Services at a meeting
held earlier that day.

Having been acquainted with the requirement of paragraph 4 (e) of
the Officer Employment Procedure Rules, the Cabinet confirmed that
there was no material or well founded objection to the Panel’s
proposals with regard to the offer of an appointment to fill the
vacancy.

Chairman



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3a

CABINET 27 April 2006

FINANCIAL MONITORING — REVENUE BUDGET
(Report by the Head of Financial Services)

1. 2005/06 Budget — As at March 2006

1.1 The Cabinet considered a report on the variations to the revenue
budget at its meeting on 3 November 2005; and has subsequently
received updates in the reports considering the MTP and budget for
2006/07. This report identifies the main variations to the 2005/06
budget since November 2005.

1.2 Although the financial year has finished there are still many items of
expenditure that need to be charged to the accounts. Therefore this is
still a forecast and not the final outturn.

1.3 The main variations are:

Income Expenditure Recharge Net
to capital Expenditure
£000 £000 £000 £000
Original Budget -37,654 55,681 -654 17,373
Unspent budget brought forward from 2004/05 272 272
-37,654 55,953 -654 17,645
Less reimbursed expenditure 23,321 -23,321 0
-14,333 32,632 -654 17,645
Variations reported November 2005 +42 -643 -601
Subsequent Variations
Additional recycling credits -70
Additional interest due to capital scheme
delays and deferrals and other cash flow
improvements -292
Impact of revenue scheme delays and 54 -45
deferrals
Additional Land Charges income -50
Additional recruitment costs 77
NNDR write-off 140
Additional Planning grant -49
Extra costs recovered -48
Shortfall in achieving savings target 52
Increased recharges to capital -88
Other -1
sub-total -455 +223 -88 -320
Total variations -413 -420 -88 -921
+2.9% -1.3%
Forecast net spending 16,724




2. RECOMMENDATION

2.1 It is recommended that the Cabinet note the spending variations.

ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT 1985
Source Documents:

1. Cabinet and Council Reports
2. Budgetary control files.
Contact Officers: Eleanor Smith, Accountancy Manager (01480 388157)

Steve Couper, Head of Financial Services (01480 388103)



Agenda Iltem 3b

CABINET 27 APRIL 2006

MONITORING OF THE CAPITAL PROGRAMME - 2005/06
(Report by the Head of Financial Services)

1. PURPOSE

1.1 This report highlights the variations from the currently approved Capital
Programme (as updated for any member or officer decisions already
taken in accordance with the Code of Financial Management).

1.2 More detailed information on specific schemes can be obtained from the
relevant Head of Service.

2. MONITORING INFORMATION

2.1 The Budget approved in February 2005 and any subsequent
adjustments are shown below:-

Gross External Net
Budget  Contributions Budget
£000 £000 £000
Approved Capital Programme (February 2005) 27,658 4,571 23.087
Delayed/Deferred from 2004/05 (21 July 2005) 5,760 1,008 4,752
Cabinet approved variations 729 -375 1,104
Adjusted Total Capital Budget 34,147 5,204 28,943
Forecast Variations
Previously reported (21 July, 3 November, 23 -12,648 -2,266 -10,382
February)
Further variations in this report (details below) -1,574 0 -1,574
Forecast spending 19,925 2,938 16,987

2.2 Since the last report on 23rd February 2006, further timing changes to
the schemes shown below will result in expenditure taking place in
2006/07 rather than 2005/06:-

£000
Expenditure deferred to 2006/07
Oak Tree Health Centre 500
Heart of Oxmoor 100
Leisure Centres — Future Maintenance 200
Sawtry Leisure Centre - Impressions 400
Photocopiers 27
Corporate EDM 75
Customer First 85
Business Systems 157
Huntingdon Boatyard Improvements 30
TOTAL 1,574



2.3 Annex A shows, for each scheme, any variation in the planned
completion date or the scheme cost. The final page of the Annex defines

the content of each column.

3 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

2005/ | 2006/ | 2007/ | 2008/ | 2009/

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Variations on this report £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Net Capital -1,574 | 1,574
Net Revenue -39 -39

4 RECOMMENDATIONS

4.1 Itis RECOMMENDED that Cabinet:

i) Note the monitoring statement at Annex A.
ii)  Note the latest variations and their estimated capital and

revenue impact.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Capital programme and monitoring

working papers.

Previous Cabinet and Committee reports on capital expenditure.

Contact Officer — Steve Couper

& 01480 388103




840 T abed

wwm_QEOo MOU SaWayds 1SoN

a19|dwoo Bunybi 1991

90 yaorey

BZ 9seyd 1noD s1oIpauag 1S 1o} 3oeq sispua
-a19|dwod

900z Aey
Ul 91IS UO LelS YIM anuiRuod MoU |jim ubisap
- [19UN0D UMO] Aq panowal suonaalqo

palWWod
NGTF - died Jed apisianly S109N 1S

919|dwod moN

SINIWNOD paroaloid

V X3aNNV

14
06¢

CET-
08-

S8

€T
0T-

€8T

€8T

Q2duelleA

98
[4>
99
0¢

209
occe

og
6¢

€¢

66

€T
€¢
144

JASTAS)
0¢

LEL9

1Se29.104
pu3 Jes A

98 0 90-felN-TE  90-1eN-TE
0 sexx €T go-unf-0€  SO-JeN-TE
19 wxxx €T S0-990-0¢  90-'eN-0€
(014 s 90-1eN-TE  GO-JeN-TE
LS wxxx - G0-AON-GZ G0-29Q-T€
ov6T 0 90-InC-8¢ 90-InC-8¢
29T 4 90-INC-0€  §0-08S-0g
60T 0 90-"elN-TE  90-1eN-TE
€c 0 90-"eN-TE  90-1eN-TE
T 0 90-/elN-0E€  90-1eN-0€
0 xxxx 16 G0-des-0g  £0-994-0€
€€ 0 90-uer-0g¢  90-uer-0g
14% 0 L0-"feN-TE  LO-TeiN-TE€
¥.59 oljojuiod Joj [e10]
(014 0
7559 8 90-AeN-0£  90-TeN-0€
Ieak 1oy (sx09Mm) fenjoy/
panoiddy uoljelleA  1sedalo4  panolddy
NOIL3TdNOD

S,000F 3dNLIANIAX3 13N

(90/50) apIM 1011SIT - sdw| 8[edS |leWS  £0°LST/TO
(G0/770) 8pIM 1011SIT - sdw| 8[edS |lewWS  20°LST/TO
(90/50) Sluswaoidw| [eJUSWUOIIAUT JOOWXO  €0'Y0T/TO
sdwy Aug - Aeswey ‘e ym s V/TS0/20

Z 8seyd - anuad umo] uopbununy  v/610/T0

loowxQ Jo uesH  49/1+2/20

Z Ud dwi Aug - Aeswey ‘slAUm 1ealo  v/050/20

(90/50) sdw 8[eds |eWS SaNIWWOD JUlor BalY  £0°TEV/E0

sjuawaAoldw| [elusWUOIIAUT

swawanoidw| Bunybi - 1epiosig pue swL)  £0°9£0/00
uononpay awnd

(90/50) suswade|day vIdWeED - ALDD  Z0°020/00

ALDD
Aled led uojueisusd  d/.T0/C0
S Ud - sdw [ejuswuolinug - Y/4T0/00
uoneawsaldw| ABarens Bunred red 08y
syled ed
uodsuel] % juswuolAUg  :O1704140d

sapeiBdn aulq ainsia]
ABojouyosa] uolrewlou|

uopBununNH loowxO anuad YlesH aall Yeo €19
juswdojaneq 21WouU09g

:01704.1L40d

90/500¢ SaWayds aANdyY

140d3d ONIJOLINON SINIHDS 1VL1IdVO - d1IN



8 40 g abed

swia|goid Aouaby Au3 pue [eba)
01 anp Aejap - AemajdoAd uowwo) puels|

Auno) ayl Aq
pauels buiaq mou si ABarens umol 19xJeN

Aema|aho DND

Auno) Aq
Aejap - 194 1no paled Bulag jou Abarens

yosew ui Jels 0} anp Yo

juswaaibe |rey lomiaN Buiurerqo o1 108lgns
9002 Yoseln ul Jels 01 pauue|d 3Iop
‘pPanIadal SIapud) |e

Aema|oAD py Ainquy
Aema|aAd pue Aafes JND

pala|dwod siayays sng

9002 YaJe ut uonajdwiod
anp ‘900z Uer A|1ea als Uo Pales IO

3iom ays uo Bunrels
sI ubisap pue awayas panoidde 18uiqe)d
panowal Buiag sabelia ul $,0dV

‘|udy Ul SHRIS UoNONASUOD “MJom
sreak 1s11 ay) panosdde aney 1auiqe)d

SINIWNOD

9002 IMdy 2T

v
ST-

0T

89

(014

14
1
1
o¢

S6€-

LT

aduelleA

paloalold pu3 Jeap

¥9¢

0T
68

89

0¢c
(01

14
<13
<13
(01

LT

1Sedal0

¥9¢

(014

[474
ST

68

T€

1

00¥

Ieak 1o}
panoiddy

S.,0007 3dNLIAN3dX3 13N

XXXK

XAXK

FEAK

FEAK

FEAK

FEAK

FEAK

Zs

€T

28

o¢

44"

114

9¢
69

17"

(sy90Mm)
uolrelen

90-1eIN-TE  90-"eN-TE
90-'eN-0E  GO-1eN-TE
L0-"felN-0E  LO-TeN-0€
90-/elN-0E€  90-1eN-0€
L0-1eIN-0€  LO-JeN-0E
90-unf-0€  90-1eN-0E
90-d9S-82  G0-094-82
90-felN-0E€  90-1eN-0E
G0-084-S0 S0-994-S0
90-/elN-0E  90-1eN-0€
S0-190-0€ S0-1eN-T€
90-/elN-90  €0-190-0€
G0-990-0¢  90-094-8¢
90-uer-0¢  G0-094-8¢
G0-des-0g  90-094-82
go-unc-0¢  +0-99Q-0€
G0-Aen-Te  ¥0-Uer-T¢
L0-TeN-TE  90-99Q-T€
90-'eN-0E  t0-094-T0
fen1oy/
1seoalo4 panolddy
NOIL3TdNOD

sa|qejokoay Aiq Joy suig pajeaym jeuondo 209
1UusWabeue) a1seM

(50/v0) ABarens uodsuel] SI00N 1S 20°052/20

(90/50) ABarens Lodsuel] UMOL 19)JeN SaAI 1S V/Z9E/E0
(90/50) seIn0yY 82AD BfeS  €0'2ST/TO

(90/50) ABerens uodsuel] umol 1)IeN Aeswey  Z0'€9£/€0
(90/50) suswanoidwy - suonels Aemjrey  T0'ZET/Z0

(S0/v0) swswanoidw - suoners Aemjrey  v/ZeT/20
(90/50) ue|d uodsuel] [e207 £0°S60/TO
(S0/v0) ue|d uodsuel] [e207 Z0'S60/TO

ABarens uodsuel ] umo] 19xelN uopbununy 20 T9E/E0
ABarens uodsuel ] umo] 19xelN uopbununy  TO'T9E/E0

uopbBununH ‘UoWWOD SM3IA - 8IN0Y B[9AD  V/99E/E0

(90/50) subis/siuswanoidwi AIqiSS820Y YED'£00/00
uolreliodsuel|

uoisinold dois sng einy 8y

(90/50) uoisinoid enx3 - si8)dys sng  Z0'001/€0

(S0/%70) uoisinoid enx3 - sI8)dys sng  TO'001/€0

(70/€0) uoISInOId enx3 - SI8)BYS sNg  00°001/€0
1oddns uodsuel] 21jqnd

S9OUBIUBAUOD JN|ANd MBN  V//Z0E/E0

Su0) 2ljgnd-siuswanoidw [eiauss  V/E9T/TO
S92UBIUBAUOD 21|gNd

90/500¢ Sawayads aANdyY

140d3d ONIJOLINOW SINTFHOS TVLIdVO - d1IN



8 Jo ¢ abed

*1919pUa} 1ISAMO| Yum suonenofbiau uo
Aired 01 GOz Jaquiada@ Ul papIoap |1ounod 0

sawanoidwi pasieao)
Joyxred ayl ul sawayds |rews e Buiyoo| e

60T-

9G-

il

slainsul 1o 01 passed MoN ‘paInal
1Ng paAIgodal usaq sey yoliym saiuedwod
90URINSUI WOJ) Wiejd uo juepuadag N4

aoueLEA
SININNOD pa1oalold  puz Jesp

68T

TO9T

0€9
¢0¢

692

SvT
8T

x4

866¢€

14

1Sedal0

68T

0T.T

989
[40r4

69/
€5

14"
8T

LT

€L6€

Ieak 1o}
panoiddy

S.,0007 3dNLIAN3dX3 13N

9002 IMdy 2T

0T 80-1BN-TE

0€T 90-bnv-8z

0110J110d 10} [e10L

0 90-1BN-0€
0 90-1BN-0€

0 90-1eN-0€
0 90-1eN-0€

01]0j110d 10 [BI0L

12 90-6nv-T¢

0 90-1eN-TE

olj0j110d 10} [e10L

70T 90-1eN-0€

(sy90Mm) [en1oy/

uoljeliep  1Se08104

90-1eiN-TE

¥0-094-8¢

90-/eN-0€
90-/eN-0€

90-1eN-0€
90-1eN-0€

90-1eiN-TE

90-1eiN-TE

¥0-1eiN-0E

panoiddy

NOIL3TdINOD

doys dois auQ pue sdw| asnoH Japuiyled  V/00E/S0

UOIIEPOWWO022Y 32110

sjuswanoidw| preAreog uopbununH  v/S9€/€0
juswdojana@ dlwouod3

Japes  01104140d

(90/50) (Aousbunuo)) el BuisnoH [e10s

(90/50) SNIY pue SYHH €0°'TFT/00

(90/50) swels sanijioe pajgesia €0°6£0/T0
1915169y BuisnoH uowwo) A4
1oddns BuisnoH

uyeaH a1jand ®® BuisnoH  :01704140d

Bupjlopn ssajaIIM - snyauag BuisnoH 929
sujauag BuisnoH

(90/50) reudeD 1dwax3 1VA €0'666/€0
uonensIuIWPY

9dueul4  0I1041d0d

[remn Buiurelay - 108N 1S ‘Y00IqUSH
S8SIN02IBTeM

90/500¢ Sawayads aANdyY

140d3d ONIJOLINOW SINTFHOS TVLIdVO - d1IN



8 40 7 abed

1uawdinba Jo 11| lapua)

[eulblo wou paniwO Juelb [eussixa Jayuny
10 1d199a1 Buiwyjo} 3jing 8g 01 mou sI dwey
MaA 'S002 1aqwiadas YL T uo Afeniyo
pauado led ares "pals|dwod SHIOM ||y

paubisap Buiaq sawayds

a19|dwod awayos

pPaduswwod
paneme Bunybi| 198.1s Jo uone|eIsu] 'O

90 YdJe\ ul uonepunoH

|leqioo4 01 suoissiwgns ‘siadoj@nag

Aq suoneoiddy buiuueld Buipuad pjoy uo
21UdD 100PINQ - SAA| 1S

‘uoissiwiad

Buiuue|q paureb 1091ydly patedasd
Bulag Buipuny 1oy uoneoldde ‘diysisuned
|requoo4 207 yum ajdiound ul paaiby
sied Alold - 109N 1S

‘palapisuod

Buiag sa21O DA 01 SS9 anua) Alold
‘1 INOD 01 pauodal

se Bulobuo sanssi [eulalxa uo sjoaloid
"Buipiing Jo 8y paywy|

10 1UNo29e Buiye) ‘passaippe Buisg asnoH
Japuyyred 1e payiuapl sanss| ssadoe ydd

SININNOD pa1oalold  puz Jesp
$.0003 IYNLIANIAXT L3N

9002 IMdy 2T

96 96
0 S
6v 6V
14 <14
€€ €€
0T 0T
0 19
/8 /8
0 0T
0 0T
8¢ LT¢
€ €
ac (44

aduelleA 1Sedal0

0 LT So-InC-1€
Zs 0 90-1eN-TE
0 werx LT S0-InC-T€
0 wxex 09 Go-Aen-1e
0 TcT 90-1eN-TE
0 Zs L0-"eN-TE
19 0 90-1eN-TE
0 0 S0-1eiN-T€E
0T 0 90-1eN-TE
oT wxxex 9C mo.&mm.om
68T 01|0J140d 10} [e10L

0 0 SO-leN-TE
0 0T 90-1eN-TE
Ieak 1o} (sy90Mm) [en1oy/

panoiddy uoljellep  1sedaloo

SO-TeN-TE
90-1eN-TE
SO-TeN-TE
v0-TeN-TE

€0-AON-0€

L0-TeiN-TE

90-1eiN-TE
S0-1eiN-TE
S0-1eiN-TE

90-1eiN-TE

SO-feiN-TE

¥0-1eiN-0E

panoiddy

NOIL3TdINOD

Yied a1eys - sjoaN 1S L9Y
(90/50) wawdinb3 Aeld  £0°69€/€0
(S0/v0) wawdinbg Aeld  z0'69€/€0
(r0/€0) wawdinb3 Aeld  T0°69€/€0

juawdojanaq sied Jeauliolid  V/TZT/T0

sjuswanoidul| eqiooH oy
saoeds uadQ pue syied

(90/50) swelo 109(01d aInsia [€207  €£0'666/00

(S0/v0) swuelo 109(01d aInsia (€207 20'666/00

uonngiuo) diysiauped anuad Iarep weyfels  /850/20
Salll|19e4 pue S}UdAT 3INSIaT

(90/50) 108lo1d uonewlou] Ayunwwod  TO'€ZH/E0
saAlreniul Allunwwo)

ainsiv  :01704.140d

(50/%70) Buiwug dwnd - sjuny 3N [emauay [einy  V/8SE/€0
uolleAlasuo) pue Aaljod Buluue|d

218 Aljiges!q - sse00y sbulpling oljand  v/82T/T0

90/500¢ Sawayads aANdyY

140d3d ONIJOLINOW SINTFHOS TVLIdVO - d1IN

10



840 G abed

G0/S0/20

Buiuado erowo *50/50/50 uonajdwod
paoadx3 *a|npayas uo ||ns - Go Jdy
a|Npayas uo Apuaiind

S0 Kein 20

Ag uona|dwod - TT/6Z Pa2USWIWO HIOAN
‘Aanins uonipuo) jo Buiseydal

pue uonanpal saAjoAu| “swwelboud rende)
2INSIaT Ul 81aYymas|a wodj uael si Buipuny
se Buo| se - uanlb [enoidde 1auIged
"paiinbai %0z enxs - %8ze

10 [e101 Bunssnbal $0/0T/¥T 404 18UIGRD

0} Loday "J1apua) 1Isamo| yum paljenobauay
10 das 0g paulnmay "Bulspual

-9y "196pnq JaA0 YOG J9pUd) 1SOMO
‘anuanal ey nsal Buisealoul

pue (T9Z7 pue 09Z71) SBWaYdS Yioq
Buluiquod ¥80£F Te paloaloid mou awayos
‘paresodiooul

mou ued reuiblio 0} SUOIRIYIPON

£0/90 0} pw} paLLied aq 01 anpisal Auy

"2 Jeak Woli) paniadal SadloAUl e

[N pakejap awayds Jo uoireluawajdul |in4
slapinoid [eulaixa pue ‘sweal DdH
[eulaiu] ‘quawabeuey aiuad usamiaq ag
01 (90/50) swwelibolid € reak jo Alanjaqg

'90/S0 01 Spuny pasnun Aue pJemio}

Aired ‘goyare uonajdwod fenuelsqns
‘Aem Japun OIS

‘Rem Japun DH ‘Aem Japun D1S/01d
(8/22 panure aie)) 8/0T

sulnial OIS ‘2/€g suindl OINS/OTH ‘L/6
suin}al O1S/01Y "sabels ul Ino sispua

‘premio} paled ag 0} spuny pasnun Auy
'SaNuUd)

|le uo suodal uoisinoid pajgesiq Jo uinlal
Buipuad 0/£0 WOl premioy patsed 6T

‘Buipun4
diysiaurnred uo uepuadap sswayss

‘Bunured Bunreme ‘pasiuened
pue pais|dwod uoneouge ‘pade|d JaplO

SINIWNOD

9002 IMdy 2T

L 14 6eT

00¢- X4 X474

.8 .8 0

8 8 0

0 ¥9 ¥9

0T 0T 0
aoueleA  1Sed8l04 Jeak Joy

paloalold pu3 Jeap panoiddy
S.000F 3JNLIANIdX3 L3N

wxex €T

sxxx 0

8.

Z8

(sy90Mm)
uolrelen

Go-Aen-/0  GO-uer-T€
90-1eN-TE  90-1eN-TE
G0-"eIN-TE  SGO-JeN-TE
G0-das-0¢  ¥0-len-TE
90-"eN-TE  90-1eN-TE
S0-InC-T€ €0-990-0€
fen1oy/
1seoalo4 panolddy
NOIL3TdNOD

® 90110 ‘BUoaI) - aNU3D aInsla] Aaswey  V/yZi/E0

(90/50) @2urUBIUIRI BININS - SBUBD BINSI8T  ZO'VET/Z0

(S0/v70) @oueUBIURI BININS - SBAUBD BINSIST  TOVET/Z0

(r0/€0) sanloed pajgesia - saiuad aINsid  TO'GET/TO

S911ua) uoljealdsy

(90/50) sxed Annnoy s,ajdoad BunoA  €0°00/20

SubIS - s)jled snoueA  v/L0T/TO

90/500¢ Sawayads aANdyY

140d3d ONIJOLINOW SINTFHOS TVLIdVO - d1IN

11



840 9 abed

919|dwo9 193(oid
paj|2oued MaINY

SJUBWHWIWOD
JJels Iaylo 0} anp pake|ap Nojj0Y

"Buipiing OH mau ays Ut 813ud)
92IAIBS JaWwoIsn) e Jo uoireluawa|dwi sy}
01 anp Awioid pabueyd ayi 199))al sabueyd

913UdJ |[ed OJUI ¢ Bses|al = g alep Ay

"Buipiing OH mau ay ur auad
92IAIBS Jaw0oIsn e Jo uoireuaws|dwi ayl
01 anp Awioid pabueyd ayl 199))81 sabueyd

‘Buip;ing OH Mau a8yl ul 8uad)d
99IAI9S Jawolsn) e jo uoneswsa|dwi sy}
0] anp Awioid pabueyd ayy 109))al sabuey)d

OH Mau a8y} ul 8uad 32IAIBS 18W0ISnD
e Jo uoneluswajdwi ayi 0y anp Auoid
pabueyd ayj 199381 sabuey) ‘1ouN0D

Aq ajij01d mau jo fenrosdde Bunreme

naiyip Buinoud Jaiddns yum
suonenofau [elnlawwo) uoneuswa|dwi
a)ud) ||eD 01 anp pausyed

19h

se ylom Jayio yum Buibexoed o Buuspual
-a1 yim paadold 0] Jayiaym uo uoisiosp oN
‘paliajap YoM

‘pa10adxa JaA0 HOOT Ul SWwed SIapua |

JUB|[92X8 90 Uer 9Z Te se ssalboid
‘uonearjdde welb ahs|j0D uo

ssalboid ou yum xred yoeods/red uo sanss|
IINS "syJom Buip|ing 01 senow uay) ‘eale
Ae|d pJey juswaoe|dal yum suelS 10B1U0D
399M OF "GO 1daS UIgT pasuaWwoD
919|dwod s1apua |

SINIWNOD

9002 IMdy 2T

174 114
8G- 0
9¢ 9¢
6¢ et
v0¢ 689
T veT
(0] .8
09T- 0T
88T- 0114
0 0T
0ov- 66V
aoueleA  1Sed8l04

paloalold pu3 Jeap

S w8 G0-AeN-92  GO-TeN-TE
(014 Zs L0-TeN-TE  90-1eN-TE
0 sxxx 66 90-084-8¢ v0-"eN-TE
86 S6 60-uer-0€  LO0-JeN-TE
1% [4°] 80-1eN-TE  LO-JeN-TE
19 96 60-uer-T¢  LO-JeN-TE
6 96 60-uer-T¢  LO-JeN-TE
S/ 0 80-/eN-TE  80-1eN-TE
6T 01]0j110d 10} [e10L
98¢ 69 LO0-TeIN-TE  E€0-AON-0€
668 9g 90-unr-0¢  S0-1dv-T0
Ieak 1o} (sy90Mm) [en1oy/
panoiddy uoljellep  1sedalo4  panolddy
NOIL3TdNOD

S.,0007 3dNLIAN3dX3 13N

dwo) % ylomiaN ereq Jo Andas pasueyug
M3INSY uonedl|ddy waisAS suonds|g

(¥0/€0) uonesijeuoney dopjsaq

Alanij@@ uonoesuel] - 1sii4 Jawoisnd

alnjonjiselju| |eadluyda] - 1sii4 Iswoisnd

sanijioed pue ajdoad - I1sii4 JI8WoIsn)

apIM awwelbold - 1SiH JIawolsnd

Juswabeue Juswnaog JluoJ109|3 alelodio)

¢0'¢80/10
¥0'10€/€0

VISLEIEO

0T'TOE/E0

0€°'TOE/E0

0Z'T0€/€0

00°'T0E/E0

S6v

ABojouyoa] uolrew.iojul

ABojouyosa] uolrewloju| B suoneiado

SuayoNIY 7 8YdaI) - 81U aInsIa SloeN 1S

oIpNIS SssaullH - Awes

90/500¢

‘01704.140d

VIEEE/ED

a/¢9¢/c0

S9WaydS aAdY

140d3d ONIJOLINOW SINTFHOS TVLIdVO - d1IN

12



810 , abed
paleme S||iq pue PalILIWOD YIOM ||y

',0/900¢ 01 suni
aWaYIs dyL ¥0/€00g Ul papuny Ananoe
01 Ajuo saje|al pajonb ayep uonajdwo)

'90/5002
0} SUNJ 3WaYJS dYl "#0/S00Z Ul Annnoe
0] Ajuo saje|al pajonb arep uonajdwo)

Buipjing OH mau o} sjuswalinbal
10 uoneanoads Buipuad pakejaqg

uoneluawaldw| a1us) ||eDd 03 anp
paliaiep MalAal Jayuny - 819|dwod 198loid

a19|dwo9 103loid

pue sBuIp|iNg pajsi| 40y WiojiuN
0] SjuUBWBdURYUS a1emos Bunremy

|[auuosiad ul sabueyd yeis 0] anp pakejad

slalddns
pa1sI|1ioys 01 SAITeUIS)E JO UOITRIapISU0d
pue N d jo abueyd - pake|ap Juswalindold

"/0/90 uo sbunjooq

3UI|UO 2INSIaT 01Ul PALBAIP 3q 03 A|d)]|
xsony 10)id 1oy Asuol\ “(sAep GT xoidde)
aoe}IaUI 8} 919|dwOod 0} udseHapun ag

0} paau uay} ||Im Jom Juawdolanap [eulajul
[euonppy ‘(3 pus 1eak aiogaq Al
90BIBIUI BUOISPE|D 10} Od pue Jo 4o

ubis -palejdwod mou Aljiqisea) adeaiu|

SINIWNOD

9002 IMdy 2T

8¢-

01T
99T-

16

€¢
Nl

9¢

14

aduelleA

paloalold pu3 Jeap

68

0¢
ve

14

(474
et

o4
8T

9¢

1Sedal0

LTT

0c
4]

14

¢L0c
et

1§

0¢

Ieak 1o}
panoiddy

S.,0007 3dNLIAN3dX3 13N

FXXN O m0|_®§|OM mOLm_\/_lom
0l]0j110d 104 [e10L
14 90-1eN-0€  90-0°94-8¢
0 90-1eN-0E€  90-1eN-0E
0 90-1eN-0E€  90-1eN-0E
0l1]0j110d 10} [eiol
0 90-1eN-TE  90-1eN-TE
s 90-1eN-TE€  GO-TeN-TE
0 L0-TeN-TE  LO-TeN-TE
pree 7 G0-bnv-T¢  ¥0-TeN-TE
wwnn LT 90-094-ST  90-1eN-TE
70T 90-1eN-TE€  ¥0-1eN-TE
T2 90-1eN-TE  G0-190-T€
Zs 90-1eN-TE€  GO-1eN-TE
Zs 90-1eN-TE€  SGO-1eN-TE
(sy90Mm) [en1oy/
uoljellep  1sedalo4  panolddy
NOIL3ITdINOD

suswanoidw) BunyBiT - 1opiosig pue swld  Z0°9£0/00
uonoNpay awu)

Ayeges Anunwwod % yyesH d1ignd  :01704140d

sjuswdolaAaq 9usd UMOL  V/#22/20
(90/50) Buiwd dwngd - sjuny 3N [emauay [einy  TO'8SE/E0

sanss| Aaq@ Buluue|d - ABQ 1USD UMOL JUNH  V/2/0/TO
uoleAIasuU0) pue Aaljod Buluue|d

ABajens Buiuueld :01704L140d

(90/50) wawaoe|day 193]4 S9DIYSA  £0°Z6T/20
AlasInN Jaisayourwpos 297
S99IAIBS suolrelado

alnjonJiselju| eleq pue adloA v6v

M3INBY uoned|ddy preoquoNms  #0°T0E/E0
Juswabreue IanIes

maInay uoneolddy Buluueld #0°TOE/E0

WaISAS ||0iAed/|auuosiad  80'TOE/E0

walsAs ssauisng suonelado

juswdoanaq walsAs ainsie] TT TOE/E0

90/500¢ Sawayads aANdyY

140d3d ONIJOLINOW SINTFHOS TVLIdVO - d1IN

13



8 Jo g abed

6¢- S¥/.91 78291 oljoj1iod [le [e1oL
9¢- T 09 01]0j110d 104 [e10|
1e- 0 yx4 0 90-"eiN-TE€  90-1eN-T€
1004 Aq panoidde pig pasinay T T €e 1T 90-unc-0g  v0-"eN-T€
8 8 0 01|0J110d 40} 101
"awiayas Jo AdAilap Joj ajqisuodsal D00 € € 0 xexx €S ¥0-leN-T0  €0-1eN-TO
aouelle  1SEO9104 Ieak 1o} (sy90Mm) [en1oy/

SINIWNOD parsloid pug sesa panoiddy uoljellep  1sedalo4  panolddy
S.000F 3JNLIANIdX3 L3N NOIL3TdNOD

9002 IMdy 2T

juswaoe|day siaidoosoioyd 0S¥y
(¥0/€0) mainay uoneslddy sabreyd puet #0°TOE/CO
ABojouyoa] uolrew.iojul

Koljod % s804n0Say  :01104.L40d
dwy [eluawuoliaug Aempeolg - A8jXeA  V/ES0/T0

sjuawanoidw) |leluswuoldinug

90/500¢ Sawayads aANdyY

140d3d ONIJOLINOW SINTFHOS TVLIdVO - d1IN

14



‘80URLIeA
reoueuly o abeddis
‘reJjopp Aue Buiqliosap
aAlfelteu Blig

SINIWNOD

"awaLos ay)
BAIRp 0}
aJnlipuadxe
BU

fenioe ay}
pue aweyos
ay jo

103 BU [elo)
pano.dde
3y Usamiaq
20U BYIP
parefoud
ayL

souel e
po1efoud

#

Aqg 110de
|ayrul
paresipul
are
asay] "Auo
Buipuny
Teak
W 1INd 3y}
sIsiyiswns
Bu11noa
Ajrenuue
Jo4

‘panodde
ainny

pue sfenioe
ouosy

uo paseq
awayos ayy
40 3500 U
IlesenoayL

oy

elol
pano iddy

" reak
snoinaid ayy
wo.yj abeddis
pano.dde

Aue Jayebol
Jeak wa1uno
a3yl 1o} dIIN
ulpspnioul
junowre BN

oy

90/500¢
pano iddy

S.0003 3d4NLIAN3IdX3 13N

XX

Aqg 110daJayy Ul
pausinBuisip a.se
alep uo e |dwod
Jfene,

ue uo paseq S|
abedds/[e.j0p
3.JoyM saWwayos

"pas1ioyine ussq
sey ([ellojep,e
yoiym Joj potsed
auy} puofag pusie
10 arep pano.dde
ay1 woJy Aren

|1 uo e |dwod
Uoum Ag sypam
uiawn fenype

Jo peypipa.d
Apusainoday

(S>0m)
abeddiis

"(Jeoo PO
©S9PN[OUIL YO IYM)
pJeoq 108/0.d

e Ag aouenpe

ul pano.Jdde

uaaq aney 1snw
uole e pade/Aepp
a1 ([elepp,

ese Ajenb ol

‘ajep pano.dde
ay1wo.j Aren

(11 UO 1B 00D
yoium Ag sxpam
ulawn (ssweyos
paw|dwo Joy)
[enioe o palipa.id
Apuaaino sy

‘U0 payIoda
Buieq Jeak

ayy oy yorey
jopusayise
pawinsse s1ayep
pano.dde ayy
wns Bul.unos .
A|renuue

ue 01arep. eyl
sfesreidde o4

‘resreidde
109f0.d pesine.
pano.dde
Apuenbasgns e
ul Jo [esieudde
1%9fo.d
feuifiio ay}
u11eloidayy
1O UoIP |dwod
ayy Jo}

UanIb a1ep ay L

0 20-%9a-1e
(S>00m) areq
rel1oPea pano iddy

NOIL3TdINOD

awsygs Jo aweN

uonisod ejewe) parendy we|v - ALOD

ININNOHIANT

‘uopouNy
Ag padnoJb uayy pue
sJieploy oljostod 0}
poredo| e a.re s1eloid

QoUs P
fesre.dde 108/0.d

670
ALDD

:017041d0d

“1eak ayl ulyum arep uonajdwod |enioe, 1o Juaing,
paloipaid e aAry yaiym 1o salejal odal ayl yoiym o1 JeaAk ayl ul (1au 10 ssolub) Buipuny panoidde yum sawayos ||V

90/G00¢ SaWay3S aAldY

SNOILINIZEA - LH0d3Id ONIHJOLINON SFNIHDS TVLIdVO - d1IN

15



16



Agenda ltem 4
CABINET 27TH APRIL 2006

BROUGHTON CONSERVATION AREA:
CHARACTER STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT PLAN
CONSULTATION DOCUMENTS
(Report by Planning Policy Manager)

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 Cabinet is asked to consider the attached draft documents and approve
them for consultation purposes. Once representations have been
received and considered, it is intended to seek Cabinet's endorsement
of the documents for use as material considerations in the context of
planning proposals.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 The District Council is committed to the production of Conservation Area
Character Statements to provide an analysis of the special interest of all
the district’'s 63 Conservation Areas. These documents will be used to
guide decisions on planning matters and other changes to the fabric of
Conservation Areas to ensure that the character and appearance of
Conservation Areas is not diminished. It is also hoped that the
publication of these documents will help to increase the general public’s
awareness of the special qualities that make the District’'s Conservation
Areas unique.

2.2 The existing Broughton Conservation Area Character Statement was
adopted in 2001 following a period of public consultation. Under the new
Best Value Performance Indicators (BVPIs), all character statements
should be reviewed in a five year rolling programme to ensure that the
advice being offered is relevant and up-to-date. As the Broughton
document is due to expire in August 2006, it was considered appropriate
to re-visit its contents and repeat the public consultation procedure.

3. THE CHARACTER ASSESSMENT

3.1 The contents of the Character Statement follows a previously-agreed
pattern, which conveys the special architectural and historical interest of
the Conservation Areas through maps, photographic illustrations and
written text. Specific references are made to:-

o The historical development of Broughton
o The essential characteristics of the Conservation Area including

important views, focal points and landmark buildings.

o The green open spaces, trees and gardens in the Conservation
Area.

) The architectural styles within the village.

o The distribution of construction materials.

17



3.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.1

) Examples of traditional local detailing.

This approach conforms with English Heritage's recent publication
Guidance on conservation area appraisals 2006. It has been necessary to
make only minor changes and updates to the original document.

THE MANAGEMENT PLAN

Since 2001, another recent English Heritage publication Guidance on the
management of conservation areas 2006 has given further assistance to
local authorities in the preparation of enhancement plans.

In response to this, a Management Plan has now been prepared for the
Broughton Conservation Area. The Plan identifies potential weaknesses
within the Area, as well as opportunities for enhancement.

The Plan also identifies the requirement to review the Conservation Area
boundary as part of the rolling update of the material (ie within 5 years).
This is considered to address the on-going management of the
Conservation Area required by the new BVPIs but also honours the
Cabinet’s decision of April 2003 to support Conservation Area boundary
reviews.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Cabinet considers approves the Draft Character Statement and
Management Plan for the Broughton Conservation Area for a period of
public consultation.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

1. Conservation Area Boundary Review Policy Document, Huntingdonshire

District Council, January 2003.

Contact Officer: Chris Surfleet

Design & Implementation Team Leader
= 01480 388476

18



Agenda Iltem 5

CABINET 27TH APRIL 2006

BROOKSIDE, HUNTINGDON
URBAN DESIGN FRAMEWORK
(Report by PLANNING POLICY MANAGER)

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 Cabinet is asked to approve the Urban Design Framework for its use
in the potential re-development of these sites.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 A draft version of this document was released for public consultation
by Cabinet on 17th January 2006 and the consultation period
extended until 20" March. It has been advertised locally and directly
affected properties have been leafleted.

2.2 As a result of comments received in writing, a number of revisions
have been made to the document.

2.3 The adoption of the Framework as Interim Planning Guidance will be
an important step towards achieving the most appropriate form of re-
development for this area. It will help to ensure that forthcoming
schemes are of a high architectural and urban design quality, and are
well integrated with existing developments.

3. THE CONSULTATION RESPONSE

3.1 8 written responses have been received from statutory agencies,
local organisations and members of the public, containing 27
separate comments for consideration. A summary of the respondents,
their comments and the Council’s response is contained within Annex

1.
3.2 Most comments have given rise to minor text or graphic changes.
3.3 The most significant concern related to the densities of development

indicated in the illustrative layouts. These were considered too low for
the location and it was felt that potential exists for buildings of greater
height. These observations have been noted but are not considered
to alter the basic layout and design principles for the development of
the site. Increases in density and/or height will be considered as part
of a detailed submission supported by a Design Statement.

4, CONCLUSION

4.1 The revised document incorporates a number of minor changes as a
result of the public consultation process.

19



5. RECOMMENDATION

5.1 That the Cabinet considers the responses to comments presented in
Annex 1 and agrees to adopt the revised Urban Design Framework,
incorporating the specified changes, as Interim Planning Guidance,
subject to the Executive Member for Planning Strategy and the
Planning Policy Manager’'s approval of the final document with the
changes shown.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
Draft Brookside Huntingdon Urban Design Framework

Contact Officer:  Chris Surfleet
Design & Implementation Team Leader
=2 01480 388476

20



pinom a1Is ay) Jo Juawdo|dAap 10} uoissiwiad
aininj Aue anoge sy} Jo Jnsal e sy

*AIuIoIA 8yl ul asn puej alioisiyald

JO pue UMO] 3y} Jo Juawdojanap [eAslpaw
ay1 Jo Buipuelsiapun ue 0} a1NqLIU0D

0] [enualod sey alis ayl ‘paynuapl alam
sainjes) ouolsiyald a|qissod pue Buihirenb
[eAalpaw 8IS 8y} Jo Led uisyuou ayl uj "yaup
umo} 8y Jano ulod Buisso1o B U0 PasSNI0}
“Juswdojanap ueqingns JO aAlrRIIpUI SI SIYL
"YOoUp UMO} [eABIPBW By} 4O dpIsino sBulpjing
[eABIpaW JO BUOZ e paluapl uoneneas ay
(98T 903 JaquinN p1029Y

1UBWUOIIAUT JU0ISIH) ZGT Jaqunp 1oday
1uN pjal4 reaibojoseyodly Ul pauodal ale
synsai ayl ‘sjesodoud juswdojanap snoinaid

0] Uone|aJ Ul aYs Apnis ayl Uo uayeuapun abpuque)d
sem uonenfens [esibojoaeydle uy, ‘IreH aaiys
:parsabbns ‘Uno) ajIse)d ABojoaeyoly
T UMOYS Se papuswe 1xa| 9' U0I193s Jo} Buiplom aneuIdlY % ‘80TTHT13 XO4g 2z alysabpugquwe)d
T po109.1100 uonde)d pauondes Ajpoaliodul TT ainbi4 e
uoneoldde aininy Aue Auedwoode 01
T AiBuiplodoe pappe 1xa] | paiinbal aq ||im JuswWSsasse XSl pooj v €2 'd 2z
ANy
1UBWINJ0P PasIAaL Ul papn|oul ‘dew pooj} w3 8yl wouy usyel aq 823d ‘uoidweig Aousby
T aq |Im 10enx8 dew pooyy areudoiddy | pinoys 1 Ing YH4S 8yl uo paseq si uejd €2 d T | ‘sue]awjoywoig T uswuolIAug
"ON ou
uonoy asuodsay uswwo) | wwo)d ssalppy | dsay spuodsay

NOJSNILNNH ‘FAISM00dd

uael uonoe ou — g
1USWINO0P SILY) JO LSS BY) UILIM JOU — 2
uael uonoe — T

T XaANNV

21



Ajbuipiodoe apew suswpuawe 1xa] | pue sytew uonsanb areap ¢ ered gz abed vT
uoneoo|
"91IS 3y} Jo Juswdojanap aalsuayaldwod jusuiwoid 01 anp AjdAIsuayaldwod pue
B 89S 0] USIM OS|e pPjnom vd1 8yl Ap1oinb swayas sy 8191dwod 01 Juenodw| T
‘e¢ abed uo 1noAe| aaneaipul ay) pauoddns uopbununH [1oUN0)D
pal1ON pue sjesodoid ay) pawodjam siaquiaiy AN ‘aoe|d Anull T umo_ uolbununH
suoneunsap Asy 1aylo pue
811U82 UMO] 3y} 01 SBUISS0JD pue SUOIIBUUOD
paaiby ueLnsapad poob si a1s ay) 01 A3y ayL TT
"yorew oy pasaye aq [m siy L ‘Absrens
UMO] 193\l 83Ul Ul UMOYS 31N0J 3y}
yum puodsaliod 10U S90p peoy aNUdAY
puoAaq uoisuaxa ayl ley) paaibe
S1111nq aue|, 91942 © uey) Jaylel ainol pauonsanb
9[040 ® SMOYS 1UaWN0p 8y ‘PaloN S| peoy Jadmo) Buoje aue| 8242 Jo uaIXT 0T
uopbununyH
Aepn uouels
wswnoop ABarens uodsuel] J81sayoueWPO pue 9SnoH uojuels uoisinig
3y} ulyum apew Apealfe si 9ouaIaley uopBununH 01 spew aq p|NoOYs aduaia}ey 6 TE0T 13 xog sAemybiH 1sa/\
‘obels areudoidde
3y} 1e uoneapisuod pajrelap ol 1slgns
aq |[IM pue Japew pajrelsp e si Syl 9ouUBUUIRW-MO|/OU 8] p|noys sease uado 8
‘abe1s pa|ielap e 1e palapisuod
aq |im sfesodoud ubisap Jo Aljigeidasoe
3y "ubisap uo suonalsal oloads
aYew 0} papualul 10U S| JUSWNIO0P dY L suBisap Jool 1e}} y23i-1y oN /.
"J1910e.1eyd pue ubisap Jo asuenodwi ajoyme
3Y} 0] 90UaJaJal SaYeW JuawnIop ayl | se umol ayl o3 anayredwAs ag pinoys ubisaqg 9
Qs
waulwoid siy) uo aduasald Juaidns
Jo sbuipjing ayeald jou |Im 1ybiay
Aal01s z 01 Juawdojanap ayl Bumwi sAal01s z 031 palwi| 8qg pjnoys ubisaq S a[eas-iaied ‘d

‘o€ ydeubered 9T9dd yim asuepiodde
ul “4om eaibojoaeyale jo swwelboid
® 8In23s 0] uonipuod annebau e 031 193lgns aq

22



pinom way} anowal 0} sjesodold "dlIs
ay1 Jo wawdojanap-al sy} 1aua(q |[oMm
Aew pue uswiean Arepunoq uedylubis

sBuljrel Bunsixa

Asan e wioy sbuijiel asay] ‘paloN 3y} Jo uonualal ayl yum aalbe jou og 12
aMs
sIy1 uo sadAy Buisnoy Jejnanted jo AlsAlap
‘an0Qe T 89S ‘PAION BU} 01 [B21ILID B ||IM SBIISUBP pasealou| 0Z
"Juswinoop
3y} ul pajowoud suonelapisuod
1Xa109/inoAe|/ubisap awes ay}
01 1093lgns aq pjnom Alisuap pasealdul ue
10 sawayas pasodoid ‘samunyuoddo pue
IX81U0J By} JUNOJJE Ol el 1eyl S/aUS
ay1 Jo juswdojanap ay 01 sayoroidde
uo paseq ale Aay1 Inq sAEIIPUI "9)IS a8y} Jo Jeal ay)
aJe UMOYS Salisuap pue sinoAe| ayl | 71e Aenoned ‘moj 001 palapisuod si Alisuaq 6T
32110 |1I9UN0D
Auno) mau pue ad1o DAaH He peol-bull
"IX8]U02 aleIpaWIWI 3yl punoJe [ea1dA) ale sA8101s 1 *20|[q SIy}
ay] JO MaIA Ul 3|geidadde palapisuod | ybnoiyl maln e yum ‘SA8l101s ¢ 8q pn0d 320|q
aq |im ybBiay Aa101s ¢ 1eyl Al@xiun si 1 | 1aulod peoy Ainquiy/apisxioolgd rey 1sabbng 8T
‘SalIs ay1 Jo uawdojanapal
Jo} sjesodoud anisuayaldwod
JO 1X31U0J 3y} Ul paJIapISuod
aQ 1Snw ainjny s} ‘a|qeIunowInsul suone|nbal
A|llesSSadau Jou aJe ng pajou aJe Buip|ing uJapowW pue uolepPOWWOIJ.
sBulwoolIoys S| "8|0yMm B Se awayds palayays jo siuawalinbal Bunsaw
ay) 0} Wduaq [enualod e se Bulp|ing ul sannaiyip 01 anp areldoidde si %20|q
SIY} JO UONUalaJ SINOAR) JUBWNJOP 3yl | Xdoelleq ayl Jo uonualal ayl rey) aalbe jou og T
lIS SIy1 uo
paloN Buisnoy 1oy Juswdolansp suoddns snuiwn oT
uopbununyH
A|Buipioooe 4dn MeM asno
palale welbelp diysiaumo pue ‘paloN 3y} Ul pue| jJo s|adJed |[e SUMO MOU snuiwnT GT 9snoH xoolig dnolo snuiwn

aJualajal aInbiy ppe

23



[aued |011u0D

JUSWNO0pP pasiopul 12 DOaH wawdojanag
‘uonisod
JUS1INJ 103}24 01 paJalje adualajey Buisnoy ajgepJloye 96z 01 9ouUalajey 9z
‘ydeibered Buimojo} ul
paniwQO papnjoul mou ABojoseyale se G elred WO Gz
puej 13240
paloN Jo apes Buimojjo} sdiysiaumo pue| puswy vz DaH ubisaqg ueqin
ied jo
Alwixoid 0] anp Aressadau ag 10u pjnoys 218
wawdinba Ae|d 40} suonNQUIUOD [RUONIPPY ford
‘uoIssIwgns
ainin} Aue Jo yed Se uoieIapIsuod ‘palinbai aq 1ou Aew prepuels auo-01
pajieiap 01 193lgns aq pinom siyl ‘paloN -9u0 ® Je Bupjed ‘uoneao| [eJudd JO MIIA U] 22

‘Alfenb useAinba jo sawyeal
Arepunog aAijeulslje ue Jayo 0} pasu

24



Agenda Iltem 6

CABINET MEETING 27TH APRIL 2006

OXMOOR (HUNTINGDON) ACTION PLAN — PROPERTY UPDATE
(Report by the Head of Legal and Estates)

1 PURPOSE
1.1  The purpose of this report is to:

e provide a brief update on the current position with regard to
property matters at Oxmoor;

e seek delegated authority to approve terms for two exchanges of
land.

2 BACKGROUND

2.1 Since the report to Cabinet on the 16th December 2004 the following
have been completed:-

e the demolition of the west block at Sapley Square including the
concrete decking over Coneygeare Road;

e the construction of a new pedestrian/cycleway bridge over
Coneygeare Road;

e agreements with the existing shop tenants at Sapley Square to
relocate to the new shop units;

e the housing development at Buttsgrove Way by Huntingdonshire
Housing Partnership (HHP) comprising 30 units for rent and shared
ownership; and

e the sale of land at Moorhouse Drive to HHP for residential
development

2.2  The Oak Tree Centre (previously known as the Acorn Centre) is due to
be completed in May/June when the lease to the Primary Care Trust
will commence.

2.3  The new shops with community facilities (the latter now called the
Maple Centre) are due to be completed by the end of April with the
shop tenants relocating by mid May. There will be four shops in the
new shopping precinct comprising a post office/newsagent,
supermarket, fast food takeaway and betting office. Situated above the
shops, the Maple Centre will provide accommodation for the Moor
Centre, Oxmoor Opportunities (including a base for the street wardens
and local police) and a number of voluntary charitable organisations. In
addition two meeting rooms will be available for hire to local groups or
organisations. The Maple Centre will be managed by Hunts Forum of
Voluntary Organisations.

2.4 A plan is appended to assist members in identifying the locations
referred to in this report.

25



3.1

3.2

3.3

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

SAPLEY SQUARE

Once the shops have relocated, the east block at Sapley Square and
the redundant garages nearby will be demolished and some temporary
car parking spaces provided for the Maple Centre. This area, along
with the adjoining amenity land, is identified in the Oxmoor Action Plan
for residential development. As part of the agreement for the
acquisition of Sapley Square shops, HHP have an option to purchase
the land to the east of Coneygeare Road for affordable housing.
Discussions will now commence with HHP to develop a scheme for the
site.

The Jehovah'’s Witnesses who own the church at Nene Road adjoining
the land at Sapley Square east, wish to provide larger premises on
Oxmoor. A site adjoining the Medway Centre owned by the District
Council has been identified and this will require agreement with
Huntingdon Town Council, who lease the site of the Medway centre, or
another landowner in order to provide a suitable access. Subject to
resolving any planning and technical constraints, it is proposed to sell
this land, comprising 2240 square metres, to the Jehovah’s Witnesses
and in return acquire the church in Nene Road ( comprising a site area
of about 500sq m) This would provide a larger site for the housing
development referred to in 3.1 above.

The area north of Oak Drive was also identified in the Oxmoor Action
Plan as a housing site. As the Oak Tree Centre and the new shops
near completion, proposals for this site are being reassessed. There is
a requirement for some additional car parking for the shops and the
Maple Centre and development of the remainder may be difficult due to
the steep slope up from Oak Drive. It is proposed, therefore, to leave
the site as amenity land after the provision of the car park.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND OTHER DEVELOPMENTS

The new Coneygeare Park is nearing completion and has been
developed in partnership with the local community. The employment of
a Park Ranger by the District Council will enable the park to be utilised
for a wide range of activities.

Play equipment has been upgraded on Oxmoor and various new
cycleways provided. As part of the cycleway network discussions are
taking place with St John’'s C of E School, Sallowbush Road where
approximately 157 sq m of land is required for the cycleway from
Oxmire Lane to Sallowbush Road. The school would like to acquire a
strip of land comprising about 85 sq m from the District Council to
improve the pedestrian link between the school building and the
playing fields. It is proposed, therefore, to enter into an exchange of
land with the County Council and the church authorities to facilitate the
cycleway link.

The Park Ranger will also be considering proposals for neighbourhood
gardens and doorstep greens which were proposed in the Oxmoor
Action Plan.

It is understood that Cambridgeshire County Council and Huntingdon
Regional College will be marketing their land at California Road for
sale later this year. The sale of this land will provide considerable
funding for the environmental improvements taking place on Oxmoor.

26



5.1

5.2

5.3

6.1

6.2

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The total expenditure on Oxmoor, including Sapley Square,
Coneygeare Park and the environmental improvements, is expected to
be in the region of £6.6 million. This is being funded from government
grant, land sale receipts and additional contributions from the other
land owners. It is anticipated that income will meet the expected
expenditure.

A more detailed breakdown of the financial position will be provided
once the contract for Sapley Square has been completed and further
land sales have taken place later in the year.

The Oak Tree Centre is funded separately by the District Council.
CONCLUSIONS

This year will see the completion of the Oak Tree Centre, the shopping
precinct and Maple Centre which together will provide the new heart for
Oxmoor. Furthermore the new community park at Coneygeare Road
will be opened in the summer. Associated with these developments
are the various cycleway and footway links which will improve
accessibility across Oxmoor.

Residential development at Moorhouse Drive and California Road will
take place over the next few years providing new housing for rent and
for sale.

RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended that

(@) progress on the implementation of the Oxmoor Action Plan be
noted,;

(b) the Director of Central Services, after consultation with the
Executive Councillors for Resources & Policy and of Finance,
be authorised to approve detailed terms for the exchange of
land with the Jehovah’s Witnesses; and

(© the Director of Central Services, after consultation with the
Executive Councillor for Resources & Policy and of Finance, be
authorised to approve detailed terms for the exchange of land
with St John’s C of E School and the County Council for the
cycleway.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Oxmoor Action Plan and Previous Minute Decisions

Contact Officer: Keith Phillips, Estates and Property Manager

& (01480) 388260

27



This page is intentionally left blank

28



Agenda ltem 7

CABINET 27 APRIL 2006

CAR PARKING ORDER — OAK DRIVE, HUNTINGDON
(Report by the Head of Technical Services

1. PURPOSE

1.1 At their meeting held on 24 February 2006, Cabinet approved the advertisement of
new car parking orders in respect of Oak Drive off-street car park. A new Order under
the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 now has been prepared and advertised in the
local press. Copies of the Orders have been sent to the Town Council of Huntingdon,
and other statutory bodies.

1.2 The Act allows a local authority to decide whether to convene a local inquiry before
determining an Order if any objections are received to the Order. No objections were
received and the Cabinet are being requested to confirm the Order as advertised.

2. CAR PARKING ORDER

2.1 The proposal is that there will be free parking for a maximum of two hours in the car
park between the health centre and the shops, with no return within one hour. This will
be controlled by the issuing of excess charge notices as necessary. Penalty Notices
can be issued for contravening other clauses in the Order. The other car parks
provided for the health centre are for staff parking and cannot be covered by a parking

order.
3. COMMENTS AND OBJECTIONS RECEIVED
3.1 As a result of the advertisement of the Orders, no representations or comments have

been received on the Order.
4. CONCLUSION

4.1 The Act enables a local authority to decide whether to convene a local inquiry before
determining an Order, however the Order received no objections.

5. RECOMMENDATION

5.1 Cabinet are recommended to

(& confirm the Order as advertised

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:-
1. Technical Services files.

Contact Officer:  Chris Allen, Project and Assets Manager
& 01480 388380

29



This page is intentionally left blank

30



Agenda Item 8

CABINET 27 APRIL 2006

Housing Act 2004 - Implementation & Enforcement
(Report by Head of Environmental and Community Health)

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 The purpose of this report is to advise members of progress with the
introduction of a range of measures under the Housing Act 2004, to seek
authority to adopt a new private sector housing enforcement policy, to set
licensing conditions for high-risk Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOSs), to
adopt minimum standards for other HMOs and to set fees for the mandatory
licensing of high-risk HMOs.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 Cabinet was informed about the introduction of the Housing Act 2004 and of
its main provisions in a report dated 19 May 2005. Subsequently Cabinet
made a range of delegations to enable officers to carry out the duties and
use the powers set out in the Act.

2.2 The Housing Act 2004 makes fundamental changes to the private sector
housing enforcement work carried out by Environmental Health staff and
much of the new regime becomes effective from 6 April 2006. As a result of
this it is now necessary to make more detailed preparations.

3. NEW PROPOSALS

3.1 The Council is signed up to the Government’s Enforcement Concordat and
Environmental & Community Health Services has a number of enforcement
policies, some of which are specific to certain service areas. There is also a
general enforcement policy which has to date included private sector
housing. In light of the radical changes brought about by the Housing Act
2004, it is considered that a specific private sector housing enforcement
policy should now be adopted. The draft policy accompanies this report.

3.2 HMOs are recognised to provide much needed affordable rented
accommaodation but HMO tenants are often vulnerable members of society
and therefore HMOs have to be managed and maintained to agreed
standards. The Government has published mandatory and discretionary
licensing conditions under the Housing Act and the Council should now
publish the conditions that will apply in this area. Attached at annex 2 is a
set of draft HMO licensing conditions considered suitable to
Huntingdonshire. Only appropriate conditions will be attached to HMO
licences following a risk assessment.

3.3 Most of the HMOs in this area will not require to be licensed under the
provisions of the Housing Act but still frequently require enforcement action.
Therefore standards for this type of HMO should be adopted to guide
landlords, tenants and the Council’s enforcement duties. Draft standards for
such HMOs are attached at annex 3 to this report.

31



3.4

3.5

4.1

4.2

Under the new licensing regime the Council is able to charge for the
administration of HMO licensing and it is proposed that an initial fee of
£300.00 be set. It is also proposed that registered charities be exempt from
this fee.

As a consequence of the way that the Housing Act 2004 (Commencement
No 5 and Transitional Provisions and Savings) (England) Order 2006 has
been drafted, areas that are currently subject to HMO registration schemes
with control provision are deemed to have been designated as areas to
which additional HMO licensing will apply unless this automatic designation
is revoked. This applies to the Huntingdonshire area and it is considered
that this automatic designation should be revoked.

CONCLUSIONS

The Council must be ready to deal with the new duties imposed by the
Housing Act 2004 with regard to enforcement, HMO licensing conditions,
HMO standards and fee setting. The designation of Huntingdonshire as an
area subject to additional licensing is not appropriate and should be
revoked.

From time to time it will be necessary to make minor modifications to the
enforcement policy, the HMO licence conditions and the HMO standards as
Government guidance changes. To avoid the need to keep bringing minor
amendments back to Cabinet it is considered that the Head of
Environmental & Community Health Services should be authorised to make
amendments to these documents after consultation with the relevant
Cabinet member.

RECOMMENDATIONS
Itis RECOMMENDED that Cabinet authorises:

(a) the adoption of the Private Sector Housing Enforcement Policy set out
in the attached document;

(b) the adoption of the HMO licensing conditions set out at annex 2;
(c) the adoption of the HMO standards set out at annex 3;

(d) the adoption of an initial HMO licensing fee of £300.00, with the
exception of licensable HMOs under the control of registered charities;

(e) the revocation of the automatic designation of Huntingdonshire as an
area subject to additional HMO licensing; and

() the Head of Environmental & Community Health Services, after
consultation with the relevant Cabinet member, to amend:

the Private Sector Housing Enforcement Palicy;
the HMO licensing conditions;

the HMO Standards; and

the HMO licensing fee.

32



BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Housing Act 2004

Contact Officer: Mr J Allan
=2 01480 388281

33



This page is intentionally left blank

34



Annex 1

Huntingdonshire

d Il strilect <©cowuwmnm<cdidl

ENVIRONMENTAL & COMMUNITY HEALTH
SERVICES

PRIVATE SECTOR HOUSING POLICY STATEMENT

April 2006

35



CONTENTS

1 INTRODUCTION
GENERAL PRINCIPLES

3  PRINCIPLES OF ENFORCEMENT
3.2  Standards
3.3 Openness
3.4 Helpfulness
3.5 Complaints about the service
3.6  Proportionality
3.7  Consistency
3.8 Transparency
3.9 Targeting

4 METHODS OF ESTABLISHING COMPLIANCE
4.1  Education
4.2 Investigations
4.3  Routine inspections

5 ENFORCEMENT OPTIONS
5.3 No Action
5.4 Informal Action
55 Formal Action

6 HMO LICENSING: Policies
HOUSING HEALTH AND SAFETY RATING SYSTEM

Annex  PROSECUTION POLICY

36



1.2

1.3

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

ENVIRONMENTAL AND COMMUNITY HEALTH SERVICES

PRIVATE SECTOR HOUSING POLICY STATEMENT

INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this policy is to express the commitment and intention of
Huntingdonshire District Council (“the Council”) to the principles of consistent and
effective enforcement legislation relating to Private Sector Housing.

The policy sets out what owners, agents, landlords and tenants can expect from
enforcement officers and commits the Council to good enforcement policies and
procedures. It is designed to set out the arrangements by which the principles of the
Enforcement Concordat, to which the Council is a signatory, will be incorporated
into actions.

Officers who carry out the enforcement functions of the Council are authorised in
accordance with the Council's Scheme of Delegation. Appropriate means of
identification will be carried.

GENERAL PRINCIPLES

To ensure the effective implementation of national and local policies, to comply with
all legislative requirements and fulfil the statutory duties imposed on the Council.

To protect the public by reacting promptly to complaints about issues that are within
the Council's remit and by delivering a balanced programme of inspection,
education and enforcement designed to achieve compliance with relevant
legislation in an equitable, practical and consistent manner.

The Council recognises that most businesses and individuals want to comply with
the law and officers will, therefore, take care to help them meet their legal
obligations without unnecessary expense, whilst taking firm action, including
prosecution where appropriate against those who flout the law or act irresponsibly.
Prosecutions will be taken in line with the prosecution policy attached as Annex A to
this report.

The Council recognises the importance of the precedents set by case law and
government guidance and will draw upon them to ensure that effective standards of
enforcement are consistently applied

Authorised officers will have regard to this policy when carrying out their assigned
duties.

That departures from these policy guidelines will be exceptional and only following
agreement with the Head of Environmental and Community Health Services or in
his absence the Public Health Manager or the Commercial Services Manager.

The Council will ensure that its officers are competent with respect to the
enforcement duties they have been authorised to carry out.

The Council will ensure that all authorised officers are impartial and are able to
operate in a manner that is free from conflicts of interest.

37



3.2
3.2.1

3.3

3.3.1

3.4
3.4.1

3.5
3.5.1

3.6
3.6.1

3.6.2

3.6.3

PRINCIPLES OF ENFORCEMENT

The enforcement of legislation is guided by the principles of the Enforcement
Concordat to which the Council is a signatory. This commits the Council to good
enforcement policies and procedures. The principles of the Enforcement Concordat
are incorporated into the following:

Standards

The Council is accountable to the local electorate for its actions and omissions.
This means that it will have clear policies and standards against which it can be
judged.

Openness

The Council will provide information and advice in plain language on the law that it
enforces and will disseminate this as widely as possible. It will also be open about
how it sets about its work, including any charges that are made for specific
activities. Officers will discuss general issues, specific compliance failures or
problems with individuals or businesses experiencing difficulties.

Helpfulness

The Council believes that prevention is better than cure and that its role therefore
involves actively working with home owners, managing agents, landlords and
tenants to advise and assist on compliance. It will provide a courteous and efficient
service and the staff will identify themselves by name. Officers will provide a
contact point and telephone number for further dealings with the Council and will
encourage dialogue with interested parties. The Council will ensure that, wherever
practicable, its enforcement services are effectively co-ordinated to minimise any
unnecessary overlaps and time delays. The Council will be prepared to discuss any
letters, circulars and other correspondence with individuals or businesses to whom
they have been sent.

Complaints about the service

The Council has a complaints procedure that is accessible to al members of the
public. The Council will also make available the procedure for a complaint to be
made to the Local Government Ombudsman that the Council has acted with
maladministration. This is without prejudice to any statutory rights of appeal that
are available to businesses or members of the public which will be explained in
writing by the Council.

Proportionality

As far as the law allows, we will take account of the circumstances of the case and
the attitude of the person committing the offence when considering action. Both
those whom the law protects and those on whom it places a duty expect that
compliance action taken by the Council should be proportionate to the risks posed
and to the seriousness of any breach of legislation.

In dealing with landlords and small businesses we will make a particular effort to
assist them in meeting their legal obligation without incurring unnecessary expense.

Some legal requirements are specific or mandatory, i.e. there is no room for
discretion or individual interpretation. However, others require action in line with the
principles of “reasonableness” or “appropriateness” and the regulatory system often
includes the concept of proportionality through such principles. Deciding what is

38



3.64

3.6.5

3.7
3.7.1

3.7.2

3.8
3.8.1

3.8.2

3.8.3

3.8.4

reasonable or appropriate to control risks involves the exercise of judgement and,
when the law permits, discretion by enforcers based on sound professional
judgement. Where agreement cannot be reached, the final determination of what is
reasonable in particular circumstances may ultimately be made by the Courts.

Some risks may be so serious that they cannot be permitted irrespective of the
economic consequences, whilst at the other extreme, some risks may be so trivial
that it may not be worth spending more to reduce them. In general, risk-reducing
measures must be weighted against the associated costs, unless the cost of a
particular action is excessive compared with the benefit of the risk reduction in
terms of its magnitude of probability.

Although not precisely defined, cost effectiveness is an implicit element of
practicality when determining ‘due diligence defences.” Authorised officers must
have regard to costs and benefits when determining whether a landlord or
managing agent has “taken all reasonable precautions and exercised all due
diligence” to prevent an offence occurring.

Consistency

Consistency of approach does not mean uniformity, it means taking a similar
approach in similar circumstances to achieve similar ends. In dealing with
enforcement issues the council will take a consistent approach in the service
tendered, response to complaints, the use of powers and decisions on whether to
prosecute.

The Council recognises that in practice consistency is not a simple matter. Officers
are faced with many variables such as the severity of the issue, the attitude and
competence of the landlords or agents and the associated previous history of
compliance. These factors may vary between individuals/businesses which
otherwise appear similar. Decisions on enforcement are matters of sound
professional judgement of when the Council, through its officers, will exercise
discretion. It will continue to develop arrangements to promote consistency in the
exercise of discretion. These will include effective arrangements for liaison with
other enforcing authorities.

Transparency

Transparency means helping proprietors of landlords/fagents and tenants to
understand what is expected of them and what they should expect from the Council.
It also means making clear why an officer intends to or has taken a particular
course of action. This means distinguishing between compulsory requirements on
the one hand and advice and guidance about what is desirable, but not compulsory,
on the other.

This document sets out the general policy framework within which the Council will
operate. Those with whom the council deals need to know what to expect when an
officer visits and what rights of complaint are open to them.

In the case of informal enforcement action the officer will advise of the legal
requirements, explain why they should take a particular course of action, and if
asked, distinguish legal requirements from best practice advice. Officers will, if
asked, confirm any advice in writing.

In cases where the service of a formal notice appears to be necessary, the
authorised officer will where appropriate discuss his intentions and, if possible,
resolve points of difference before serving it. The Notice will say what needs to be

39



3.9
3.9.1

3.9.2

3.9.3

3.94

4.1
41.1

4.1.2

4.1.3

4.2
4.2.1

4.2.2

4.2.3

424

425

done, why and by when. Details will also be given of any formal appeal procedure
at the same time.

Targeting

Targeting means making sure that resources are targeted primarily on those private
sector housing activities that give rise to the most serious problems and that action
is focused on those who are responsible for these activities and are best placed to
control them.

The Council will prioritise compliance inspections in accordance with a risk rating
system based on a combination of the factors which determine the likely
compliance with housing legislation and the Council’s published standards.

The priorities for visits in response to complaints from the public will take into
account the nature and severity of the allegations.

Where formal enforcement action is necessary, it will be directed against the person
by whose act default or sufferance the breach occurred. Where several individuals
share responsibility, the Council will take action against those who can be shown to
be in breach.

METHODS OF ESTABLISHING COMPLIANCE
Education

The Council will make every effort to provide information both to landlords, owners,
agents and tenants concerning the housing legislation for which the Council is the
enforcing authority.

The information will be made available through the Councils web-site, leaflets, at
public buildings, at landlord’s forum, upon request or at the time of an inspection.

Where a requirement for information becomes evident either through a particular
housing problem or because of a request then specific information will be made
available in such a way as to inform those in need.

Investigations

Information on possible offences often results from complaints from tenants whose
housing conditions are being adversely affected by the actions or inactions of
others.

Provided that it will not prejudice their inquiries Officers will identify themselves at
the premises they visit and will show their Council identification.

The Council will respond to, and where appropriate, commence investigations into
complaints within 3 working days. The response time may vary according to the
nature of the allegation and its severity.

The owner, landlord or agent subject to complaint may be informed of the complaint
prior to, part way through or at the end of the investigation as may be considered
appropriate depending upon such facts as the nature of the complaint, the need for
covert surveillance and the risk of intimidation of the complainant.

Complainant’s details will not be released without either the complainant’s
permission or following a legal requirement to do so. This will be decided on a case-
by-case basis.

40



4.2.6

4.2.7

4.2.8

4.3
43.1

4.3.2

4.3.3

43.4

435

The complainant will be kept informed as considered appropriate of progress with
the investigation and of the eventual outcome.

Where it has been considered appropriate to advise an alleged offender that an
investigation is in progress that person will be kept advised of the progress of the
investigation. At the end of the investigation, they will be informed of the outcome
and whether the Council will take any further action.

Where as a result of a routine inspection or a complaint investigation, action of an
informal or formal nature may be taken, the alleged offender will be advised as soon
as practicable upon completion of the investigation

Routine inspections

Under normal circumstances, routine compliance visits will usually be arranged in
advance. Spot check visits may be made without prior warning particularly when
information has been obtained suggesting a breach of housing law.

The main purpose of a compliance visit is to ensure the requirements of housing
law are being met.

Officers will make the purpose of the inspection clear at the start of the visit with the
person in control at that time. Inspections will normally involve discussions with
landlord or managing agent at the time of the visit. At the conclusion of all
inspections, officers will normally offer to discuss, as may be appropriate, the
findings and follow this up in writing.

The Council have a number of leaflets or guidance notes that may assist in the
understanding of legal housing requirements which will normally be provided free of
charge. Some written information may be available from other sources and where
this is the case the officer will supply details of where the information can be
obtained. Letters can be translated into other languages and interpreters can be
used if considered appropriate.

Action of an informal or formal nature may be taken as a result of an inspection and
the alleged offender will be advised as soon as practicable upon completion of the
investigation

ENFORCEMENT OPTIONS

There are a number of enforcement options available where contraventions of
housing law have been identified. Part 6 and 7 of the policy provides detailed
guidance on when each of the options may be considered. The options are:-

. Take no action;
. Take informal action;
o Emergency Remedial Action;

o Take formal action, e.g. Improvement, Prohibition, Hazard Awareness Notice,
Remedial Action, Demolition Order, Declare a Clearance area;

. Use formal cautions;
. Revoke a licence;

o Prosecute (can sometimes be taken in addition to serving notices);

41



5.2

5.3
53.1

5.4
54.1

5.4.2

5.4.3

544

545

5.4.6

. Co-ordinate action with other Agencies;
o Any combination of the above.

Generally, enforcement will be undertaken in a graduated approach, unless
immediate action is required. In the first instance, a discussion of requirements will
take place with the operator or appropriate person or other person by whose act
default or sufferance the breach occurs.

No Action

Where an inspection, observation or investigation reveals that, on the basis of
evidence, there is a breach of legislation then no further action will be taken if after
taking into account all relevant circumstances enforcement would disproportionate
or otherwise inappropriate. Confirmation of the results of the investigation will be
given to any complainant and to the person or business complained of if they had
previously been made aware of the investigation.

Informal Action

Informal action may consist of any of the following:
o Advice

o Verbal Warnings

) Warning letter requesting action and setting out the consequences of failure to
comply with legal requirements.

Officers will use informal procedures as long as they believe such actions will
secure compliance with the requirements of legislation within a timescale judged
reasonable depending upon the relevant facts.

Offences of a less serious nature may be dealt with in a number of appropriate
ways including advice, verbal warning, observations, follow up letter, a re-visit or
any combination of these. Persistent failures will result in more formal enforcement
action.

Where an officer offers verbal advice following an inspection, then if requested it will
be confirmed in writing.

While the action taken by the officer will depend on the circumstances of any
particular case, for guidance purposes only, the Council considers that informal
action is likely to be appropriate in the following circumstances:

a) The offence is not serious enough to warrant formal action e.g. an offence
which can be immediately remedied and poses no risk;

b)  From the past history, it can reasonably be expected that informal action will
achieve compliance; or

c) There is reason to be confident that the breach will be dealt with promptly
without the need for formal action.

Informal letters sent following inspections will distinguish legal requirements from
advice, give a time period for compliance and state the offences being committed.
They will also give the details of who to contact if there are any queries, or issues
the recipient wishes to discuss.

42



5.4.7

5.4.8

5.5
5.5.1

6.1
6.1.1

6.1.2

6.2

6.2.1

Normally informal post inspection letters will be sent out within 10 working days of
the date of inspection. Where appropriate, copies of letters will be sent to the
registered head offices. Recommendations as to good practice that go beyond the
basic legal minimum standard are not subject to enforcement, however adherence
to good practice may influence the officer's assessment of confidence in
management.

If significant contraventions of legal requirements are found, then rather than taking
immediate formal action the officer may arrange for a further visit to be carried out
to determine compliance. The time period between the original inspection and any
revisit will be proportionate to the risks identified. Such informal action will not
necessarily preclude formal action.

Formal action
When considering formal enforcement, account will be taken of:-

o The extent of non-compliance

o The risk(s) posed

) Failure to hold or apply for a licence;

o Failure to notify the enforcing authority of the transfer of a licence;

o Failure to comply with an informal approach to remedy breaches of legislation;
o Failure to comply with a Statutory Notice

o Cumulative breaches of legislation

) Any act of obstruction
HMO LICENSING
Introduction

This section of the policy sets out the framewaork for the application and licensing of
Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMO). The policy will guide the Council in making
fair, considered, consistent and transparent decisions that can be explained to our
customers and, if necessary, defended on appeal.

This policy takes into account the prescription contained within the Housing Act
2004 and the relevant statutory instruments which will at times take precedence.
The contents of the policy will automatically be amended at the instruction of the
Secretary of State. Section 6.2 contains the general principles of the Council’s
Licensing Scheme and section 6.3 the specific details.

General Principles

Licensing: The Legal Framework

The different types of licences introduced in the Housing Act 2004 are:
. Mandatory Licensing for HMOs

. Additional Licensing for HMOs not subject to Mandatory Licensing.

43



. Selective Licensing of private rented property under certain conditions.
6.3 What is an HMO?

6.3.1 The Housing Act 2004 has introduced a new definition of an HMO. In summary, a
house is an HMO if it is one of the following:

) A shared house lived in by people who belong to more than one family* and
who share one or more facilities®.

) A house in bedsits lived in by people who belong to more than one family*

and who share one or more facilities®.

) An individual flat lived in by people who belong to more than one family* and
who share one or more facilities®.

) A building of self-contained flats that do not meet 1991 Building Regulation
standards.

! Family — husband, wife, co-habitee, child, step-child, foster-child, grandchild,
parent, step-parent, foster-parent, grandparent, brother, half-brother, sister, half-
sister, aunt, uncle, niece, nephew, cousin.

2 Facilities — basic amenities: wc, wash hand basin, shower, bath; cooking facilities.

6.3.2 Exemptions:

A house is not an HMO:

o If it is occupied by only two people.

o If it is occupied by the owner (and their family if any) and one or two lodgers.

o If it is occupied by a religious community.

o If the occupiers have their main residence elsewhere?®.

) If no one in the property is required to pay rent.

o If the owner or manager is a public body.

o If the owner or manager is an educational institution.

o If it is a building of self-contained flats and two thirds or more of the flats are

owner-occupied.

) If the property is part of a guest house or hotel (unless an ‘HMO Declaration’
is made).

# Accommodation used by full-time students while they are studying is taken to be

44



6.4

6.4.1

6.4.2

6.4.3

6.4.4

6.5

6.5.1

6.6

6.6.1

6.7

their main residence.

HMOs licensable under the Mandatory Scheme

An HMO must have a licence if all three of the following apply:

J itis an HMO

o it is three storeys or more (includes basements)

o it is occupied by five people or more.

All HMOs occupied by five or more persons forming two or more households on
three or more floors, and otherwise not exempted are required to be licensed.
HMOs consisting entirely of fully self-contained flats, which are not occupied as flats
in multiple occupation, are exempt.

When assessing the number of storeys in a premise, account will be taken of:

o All storeys of residential accommodation, whether above or below adjoining
ground level, including attics.

) Any commercial storey at or above adjoining ground level.

Whilst Mandatory licensing excludes most self-contained flats, the exceptions to this
will be where:

. it is a single flat above commercial premises or
. where the flat itself is arranged on 3 storeys.

In both cases the flat would have to be occupied by 5 persons or more living as more
than one household.

Guidance also indicates that all residential parts of a dwelling will be subject to these
provisions where the property as a whole is eligible for licensing.

Exemptions from Mandatory Licensing
A House is exempt from mandatory licensing if:
o the whole property is in self-contained flats.

) the basement is in commercial use and there are only two residential storeys
above.

Implementation

Mandatory licensing comes into force with effect from 6 April 2006. On that date,
applications are required in respect of all HMOs subject to Mandatory Licensing.

Necessary Conditions for the Granting of a Licence

45



6.7.1

6.7.2

6.7.3

6.7.4

6.7.5

On receipt of a licence application, the Council must either grant, or refuse to grant
a licence within a reasonable period.

A licence is to be granted where:

The house is reasonably suitable for occupation having regard to amenity
levels, available living space and general health and safety considerations

Management arrangements are satisfactory. “Management arrangements”
includes arrangements for monitoring and maintaining the property, ordering
works, finance, and general manager competence.

The licensee, manager and others involved in the running of the property are
fit and proper persons. There are certain criteria to be met before an applicant
can be considered to be a fit person to manage a HMO. When deciding
whether an individual is a fit and proper person the Council has to consider
whether there is evidence that they have committed an offence of fraud,
dishonesty, violence or drugs or an offence under Schedule 3 of the Sexual
Offences Act 2003. The Council also has to consider whether there is
evidence that they have practised unlawful discrimination on grounds of sex,
colour, race, ethnic or national origins or disability in connection with any
business, or evidence that they have contravened housing or landlord and
tenant law, or a breach of applicable codes of housing practice. An applicant
will not have to declare any spent convictions. The Council reserves the right
to consult with the Criminal Records Bureau and other agencies in cases of
doubt.

In granting a licence, the Act prescribes mandatory licence conditions relating to:

provision of annual gas safety certificates
safety of electrical appliances and furniture
provision and maintenance of smoke alarms

provision of written tenancy agreements

In addition, the Council will:

where it considers appropriate, impose its own licence conditions

grant a licence for a lesser period than the standard period (normally 5 years)
where it considers it appropriate

make a charge for the costs incurred in granting a licence

follow the appropriate route for consultation on the licence and its contents
with relevant people described by the Act and within relevant guidance.

When the Council is satisfied that the premise is in a satisfactory condition, the
people controlling and managing it are fit to do so and the management
arrangements are satisfactory, a licence will be prepared for issue to either the
applicant or some other person by agreement. Where it is not satisfied that these
conditions are met, the licence application will be refused.

46



6.7.6

6.8
6.8.1

6.8.2

6.9
6.9.1

6.9.2

Only the person having control of an HMO can be issued with a licence. A separate
licence is required for each property they control.

Offences

The Act lays down a number of licensing-related offences and corresponding
penalties, including:

o Operating an unlicensed HMO or allowing an HMO to be occupied by more
persons than a licence allows: fine of up to £20,000

) Breach of a licence condition: fine of up to £5,000
o Supplying incorrect information in a licence application: fine of up to £5,000

In addition, a landlord who operates an unlicensed HMO can be made the subject
of a Rent Repayment Order (RRO) by a Residential Property tribunal. An RRO
requires the repayment of rent received by the landlord over a period of up to 12
months.

HMO Licensing: Policies
Property Standards

In approving a licence the Council will determine whether the HMO is suitable for
occupation by the number of persons stated in the application form. If the
arrangements are unsatisfactory, then a licence may be granted for a lesser
number, or a licence condition imposed requiring that specified works be carried
out.

The standards that will be considered include those relating to bathrooms, showers,
WCs, wash hand basins, cooking facilities, and living space. Until such time as
definitive national standards are determined the Council’s own published standards
for Houses in Multiple Occupation will form the basis for licensing HMOs. The
exception to this will be the fire safety standards which will be assessed using the
HHSRS. The guidance standard for fire safety will be those agreed by the housing
authorities within Cambridgeshire and the Cambridgeshire Fire and Rescue
Service.

Compliance with standards set by other legislation, for example the Approved
Documents to the Building Regulations, will not imply compliance with the
standards for licensing of HMOs.

“Fit and Proper Person”

The Council will assess whether the applicant, any manager or any person
associated with them or formerly associated with them are fit and proper people to
manage an HMO. A person will be considered fit and proper if the Council is
satisfied that:

o they have no unspent convictions relating to offences involving fraud,
dishonesty, violence or drugs, or sexual offences

o they have not practised unlawful discrimination on grounds of sex, colour,
race, ethnic or national origins or disability in, or in connection with, the
carrying on of any business

47



6.9.3

o they have no unspent convictions relating to housing or landlord and tenant
law

o they have not been refused an HMO licence, been convicted of breaching the
conditions of a licence or have acted otherwise than in accordance with the
approved code of practice under S233 of the Act within the last five years

o they have not been in control of a property subject to an HMO Control Order,
an Interim Management Order (IMO) or Final Management Order (FMO) or
work in default carried out by a local authority within the preceding five years

) they have not been subject to legal proceedings by a local authority for
breaches of planning, compulsory purchase, environmental protection
legislation or other relevant legislation

) there is no evidence of any offence referred to above having been committed
within the previous five years.

An applicant must supply, as part of the application, details of any unspent
convictions that may be relevant to the application and the Council reserves
the right to carry out further checks with the Criminal Records Bureau and
others.

Where simultaneous applications are made for the same person to be the licence
holder of more than one property, only one disclosure will be necessary provided
that no more than 12 months has elapsed between applications.

Where the Council have cause to question the ‘fit and proper’ status of an applicant,
it will invite applicants to submit an explanation of their circumstances. The
applicant will be required to account for the failure to comply with legislation, and
satisfy the Council that this will not recur.

The decision to accept them as being a fit and proper person will be taken on the
basis of:

) The severity of the breach
o The number of breaches

. The time which has elapsed since the last breach and their conduct since it
occurred

) The relevance of the breach to the management of HMOs and their
occupation

o The evidence that the applicant has accepted the need to conduct his
business in accordance with the appropriate standards (including whether
there have been satisfactory arrangements made for the repayment of debts
associated with statutory responsibilities)

. The training received since the breach occurred.
Management Arrangements

The Council will at all times be guided by The Management of Houses in Multiple
Occupation (England) Regulations 2006 as may be amended by the Secretary of

48



6.9.4

State.  Specifically, the Council will require an applicant/licensee to have
satisfactory arrangements and funding in place for the management of an HMO.

These arrangements include but are not limited to:
o a system for tenants to report defects, including in emergencies

) arrangements for periodic inspections to identify where repair or maintenance
is needed

o arrangements to respond to defects reported by tenants and found during
periodic inspections

o a protocol for dealing with anti-social behaviour occurring within the HMO by
tenants or their visitors

o where the licence holder is a managing agent, the clear delegation of
authority to make decisions (including those related to expenditure) on all
matters concerning the health, safety and wellbeing of occupiers and good
management.

In addition, the Council require the applicant/licensee to have arrangements in
place for ensuring that employees, contractors and others having occasion to visit
the HMO in connection with its management and/or maintenance are fit and proper
persons for the functions they carry out. Licence applicants will be required to
declare as part of the application that proper funding arrangements for the HMO
exist. The Council will need to be satisfied that adequate financial resources to
maintain the HMO are available. In verifying declarations, the Council will have
regard, amongst other things to:

o outstanding debts for work in default and charges for statutory notices
) County Court judgements
o outstanding debts for Council Tax, Housing Benefit and other services

Where there are indications that the applicant will have insufficient funding or
authority to manage the property, the Council will seek further clarification through
the use of Credit Referencing organisations. Where satisfactory assurances cannot
be provided then there is a duty to refuse the application.

Applications

Although it is the responsibility of the landlord to apply for a licence, there is a duty
on the Council to ensure that applications are made.

Together with any direction from the Secretary of State, a valid application for an
HMO licence will comprise:

o The application form, fully completed, signed and dated.

o Inclusion of all required forms or schedules, duly completed, signed and
dated.
o Inclusion of all required documents as proof of compliance with relevant

standards or regulations.

. The relevant fee, in full.

49



6.9.5

Incomplete applications may be accepted at the discretion of the Council. The only
accepted omissions being documents of proof. The applicant must attest, in writing,
to the absence of any information. The applicant must also be reminded of the
consequences of not providing the information.

Contents of the Application Form

There are certain matters that must be included and appear on an application form,
which may, from time to time, be amended by the Secretary of State. At
commencement of Mandatory Licensing, these include:

o A prescribed statement telling the applicant that he must inform certain people
in writing that the application is being made

) The list of people who must be informed
o The information they must be given

) The name, address, telephone number and e-mail address of the applicant,
proposed licence holder, manager, person having control and any other
person who has agreed to be bound by a condition on the licence.

o The address of the property to be licensed
o The age of the property (in age bands)
o The type of house for which application is being made

) Details of other properties in the housing authority area that are licensed to
the proposed licence holder

o Number of storeys comprising the HMO and the levels on which they are
situated

o Number of separate letting units

. The number of habitable rooms

J The number of bathrooms and shower rooms

J The number of toilets and wash basins

J The number of kitchens

o The number of sinks

o The number of households occupying the property.
o The number of people occupying the property

) Details of fire precautions, equipment and procedures including number and
location of smoke alarms

o Information regarding compliance of furniture with the regulations
o Information about gas and electrical appliances and their compliance with
regulations.

50



6.9.6

6.9.7

Details of any building works carried out and copies of planning consent and
Building Regulations approval or completion certificates.

A floor plan of the property
Details about any person involved in the management of the house

Information regarding unspent convictions relevant to a proposed licence
holder’s fitness to hold a licence, in particular offences relating to fraud or
dishonesty, violence or drugs, or offences listed in Schedule 3 to the Sexual
Offences Act 2003

Details of findings of a court or tribunal regarding any form of discrimination

Details of any judgement against the proposed licence holder in relation to
breaches of landlord and tenant law

Information about any property owned by the proposed licence holder

Details of any refusal by a local authority to issue a licence to the proposed
licence holder

Details of any licence condition the proposed licence holder has breached

Details of anything the proposed licence holder has done contrary to any
relevant Code of Practice concerning a property owned by him

Details of any proceedings against any property owned by the proposed
licence holder, including works in default.

Details of any property owned by the proposed licence holder which has been
subject of an interim or final management order.

The application must contain a prescribed declaration and be signed and
dated by the applicant.

Application Process

All necessary forms will be included in an application pack provided by the Council.
There will be clear guidance on the requirements of the application included within
the pack.

The pack will include:

The application form

A schedule containing a declaration that the applicant has notified various
people.

Guidance on making the application

Verification

When the completed application form is received at the Council offices the receiving
officer will examine the document and enclosures to ensure that all relevant
paperwork is present, signed and dated.

51



6.9.8

6.9.9

All the information presented on the application form will be subject to verification
processes as required. This will take the form of site inspection, interdepartmental
liaison, sample verification and (where there are indications of a misleading
application) detailed examination of all information given. Much of this will take
place after the application has been approved.

Contents of the Licence
A licence granted by the Council will comprise:
) A licence certificate detailing:

o The name of the licence holder.

o The address of the property.

o Date of issue and duration.

o Issuing authority.

o Signature of issuing officer.

o Licence number.

o Maximum number of persons.

o Maximum number of households.
o A schedule of conditions.
Licence Approval, Conditions and Duration

An HMO licence will normally run for a period of 5 years from the date of approval.
The Council may, however, issue a licence for such lesser period as we consider
appropriate, having regard to:

) any management deficiencies

o the need for works to be carried out to put the house into a satisfactory
condition

o concerns as to the Fit and Proper Person status of the relevant person(s)

A shorter term licence may also be granted due to local circumstances, for example
if the property is in a desighated clearance area. Also the applicant may make a
case for a shorter term licence, or the Council may be directed by the outcome of
an appeal.

Before granting a licence for a period of less than 5 years, the Council will discuss
its decision with the HMO licence applicant. Where a shorter licence is granted,
subject to satisfactory performance, a further licence will be issued. The duration of
the first and second licence periods will not exceed five years in total. No additional
fee will be required for the second licence.

The Council have the right to refuse, vary or revoke a licence. When deciding on
any of these courses of action, appropriate notices will be served on the relevant
people giving the reasons for the action. There are rights of appeal to these notices,
but barring any appeal, the action will be executed at a specified time after the
appeal period.

52



6.9.10

6.9.11

6.9.12

6.9.13

6.9.14

Licence Fees

The Council will charge for HMO licences in accordance with a published fee.
Currently this is set at £300.

Appeals

Applicants and licence holders have a right of appeal to the Residential Property
Tribunal where they are dissatisfied with decisions made by us in relation to the
issue of licences, HMO declarations, notices or orders, including variations,
revocations or refusals.

The Council will consult with the relevant persons at all stages of involvement to
work to a satisfactory solution to the situation at hand.

Relevant persons will be made aware at all appropriate points where there is a right
of appeal, and will be told of the procedure, including time limits, of lodging an
appeal. This will normally take the form of notes appended to notices or orders.

Where the Council is dissatisfied with the outcome of an appeal, it will itself
consider an appeal to the Lands Tribunal or the Court of Appeal as appropriate.

Specific HMO Actions

The Act gives the Council a range of powers to serve notices and take action within
the Mandatory Licensing framework. The following sets out how the Council can
use its powers.

Temporary Exemption Notices (TEN)
The Council may grant a TEN where:

o the owner of a licensable HMO states in writing that he/she is acting to make
it non-licensable; and

. the Council is satisfied that it will be non-licensable within 3 months of the
date of receiving the written notice

In deciding whether to grant a TEN, the Council will have regard to the proposals for
the property, any Planning considerations and arrangements for meeting the needs
of occupiers including those likely to be displaced. The Council will only grant a
second TEN in exceptional and unforeseen circumstances.

Where a TEN is not issued, the Authority must inform the manager or person
having control by way of a notice, stating the decision and why it has been made,
and providing details of rights of appeal.

Licences are not transferable. Provisions exist to treat the licence as a Temporary
Exemption Notice for a period of 3 months following the licence holder's death.
During that three month period, the representatives of the licence holder may
request an extension of time of three months. If this is agreeable, the Council will
serve notice to this effect.

Rent Repayment Orders

Where the Council is satisfied that a landlord has operated a licensable HMO
without the benefit of a Licence and the rent is paid as Housing Benefit, it will
usually apply to the Residential Property Tribunal for a Rent Repayment Order. In

53



6.9.15

6.9.16

such circumstances, the Council will advise tenants of their rights, which may
include that of applying for a Rent Repayment Order in respect of non-Housing
Benefit rental payments.

Interim Management Orders

The Council will make an Interim Management Order (IMO) where it considers it
necessary to secure that appropriate measures are in place in relation to the
management of an HMO which is required to be licensed.

An IMO may be made to take steps to protect the health, safety or welfare of
occupants of the house, or of neighbours or people having an interest in
neighbouring properties, or any other management steps the Council consider
appropriate pending the grant of a licence or issue of a final management order.

The Council will make an IMO where the property is an HMO which is required to
be licensed but is not and it is considered that there is no reasonable prospect of it
being licensed in the near future, or that the making of an interim management
order is necessary to protect the health, safety or welfare of occupants of the house
or neighbouring occupants or those having an interest in neighbouring properties.
This could include the threat to evict a tenant in order to avoid the need to licence a

property.

When an IMO is made, the Council will take any immediate steps to protect the
health, safety and welfare of the occupants of the house and its neighbours and the
proper management of the house.

Whilst an IMO is made, the Council will collect rents and can deduct from this
income any relevant expenditure and sums due in compensation to a third party.
Any residual income, with interest if relevant, must then be paid to the landlord or
other recognised recipient at a frequency determined by us.

An IMO may be varied where appropriate.

An IMO may be revoked where the house ceases to be a HMO, a licence is
subsequently issued, a Final Management Order is made or in other circumstances
as appropriate.

An IMO when in force is a local land charge.
The Council reserves the right to appoint an agent to fulfil these functions.
Final Management Orders

The Council will consider making a Final Management Order (FMO) to secure the
long term management of an HMO in accordance with a management scheme
detailed in the order.

A FMO can be for a maximum duration of 5 years.

A FMO when in force is a local land charge and, the Council can also apply to the
Chief Land Registrar for the entry of an appropriate restriction in the register in
respect of the order.

If it is necessary to protect the health, safety and welfare of the occupants and
neighbours on a long term basis, FMOs will be made to replace IMOs on their
expiry if the property is required to be licensed but cannot be licensed or if it is not
required to be licensed.

54



6.9.17

6.9.18

New FMOs will be made to replace existing ones under the same circumstances.
An FMO will contain a management scheme for the property.

When a FMO is made, the Council will take appropriate steps in relation to the long
term management of the property. The Council will periodically review the order and
the management scheme contained in it, and consider whether keeping the order in
force is the best course of action.

Following the review we may vary or revoke the order or issue a licence in respect
of the property.

When a FMO is in place, the Council have the right to:
o Take possession of the house

o Do anything, and authorise a delegated person to do, which a person having
an interest in the house would be entitled to do.

o Create a leasehold or occupancy licence. Such tenures cannot extend beyond
the period of the FMO, nor can the notice to quit or termination be more than
4 weeks.

o Create an assured shorthold tenancy as long as it starts more than 6 months
before the expiry of the order.

(The time elements in the 3rd and 4th bullet can be waived with the written consent
of the person who would be managing the property if the order were not in force.)

The Council reserves the right to appoint an agent to fulfil these functions.
Registers

The Council will maintain registers of Licences, Temporary Exemption Notices,
Interim and Final Management orders. These registers will contain all the relevant
information required by regulation as well as any other information the Council
consider relevant.

The information will be stored electronically with the ability to be transcribed when
required.

The information will generally be made available to the public in accordance with
the relevant provisions of the Data Protection Act and the Freedom of Information
Act.

Personal callers will be advised of the availability of any paper versions of the
relevant registers for inspection. This will be during office hours at the council
building housing the offices of the department responsible for the management of
the HMO licensing scheme.

Enforcement

The Council’'s enforcement policy appropriate to a Housing Health and Safety
Rating System (HHSRS) is set out at section 6 and will be followed where relevant.

In deciding on the most appropriate enforcement action in any particular case, the
Council will follow the parameters of this private Sector Housing Enforcement
Palicy.

55



6.9.19

7.1

7.1.1

7.1.2

7.2

This policy includes general powers of entry, requisition of documents, issue of
documents and any other relevant matter.

HHSRS does not have to be considered before a licence is issued.

The Council will consider whether it has a duty to act under HHSRS (i.e. for an
identified category 1 hazard) as soon as practicably possible but in any case not
greater than 5 years following the issue of a licence.

The assessment of hazards in HMOs is made for each unit of accommodation, and
each assessment will reflect the contribution of conditions in the common patrts.

If an enforcement notice is served on an HMO and it reverts to a single occupation,
the Council will consider whether the impact of the hazard has diminished and take
appropriate action.

Other Requirements

As part of a general revision of housing standards legislation the existing Housing
Fitness Standard is replaced by a Housing Health and Safety Rating System
(HHSRS), which involves a risk assessment of the effect of housing conditions on
the health of occupiers.

The HHSRS involves the assessment of 29 potential hazards and scoring their
severity to decide whether improvements are needed. If more serious “Category 1”
hazards are found the Council has a duty to require the owner to take appropriate
action. If less serious “Category 2" hazards are found, the Council is obliged to take
appropriate action as provided for within its enforcement policies. Councils are
required to assess licensable HMOs to ensure that there are no Part 1 (HHSRS)
functions that ought to be exercised by them. This has to be done within five years
of a licence being issued. These deficiencies may be dealt with in accordance with
the Enforcement Policy before a licence can be issued

HOUSING HEALTH AND SAFETY RATING AND ENFORCEMENT
Introduction

This section describes the application of the Council’s Housing Enforcement Policy
in relation to the Housing Health and safety rating System (HHSRS) established by
the Housing Act 2004. Any housing enforcement action taken by the Council under
the HHSRS, in the form of informal Notices, formal Works Notices, prosecution
action or works in default will be primarily based upon an assessment of risk that a
house poses to either the tenants or the general public. Any actions taken will,
where appropriate, follow specific guidance on enforcement contained in Statute
and through government Circulars and guidance.

Inspection of a house may take place for a number of reasons, for example, a
complaint about a property from a private tenant or following information supplied
by another agency etc. In addition, Local Authorities have a statutory duty under
Section 3 of the Housing Act 2004, which requires them to consider the housing
conditions in their district, determining what action to take under the Act. All
authorised officers, when making enforcement decisions, will be bound by this
enforcement policy.

Housing Health and Safety Rating System

56



7.2.1

7.2.2

7.2.3

7.2.4

7.3
7.3.1

7.3.2

7.3.3

7.3.4

The HHSRS is a tool for assessing the living conditions of a property. The system is
based on 29 possible hazards to the most vulnerable occupier.

The process is structured around an evidence based risk assessment process.
Local Authorities have a duty to act on Category 1 hazards. They also have the
power to take action in the case of Category 2 hazards. HHSRS is a technical
assessment. It is a two-stage process, addressing first the likelihood of an
occurrence and then the range of probable harm outcomes. The assessment will be
based on the potential occupant who is the most vulnerable to that risk.

The two stages are combined to give a rating in respect to each hazard, which is a
numerical score. Hazards are then banded from A to J, A being the most severe.
The HHSRS does not provide a single score for the dwelling as a whole.

A Category 1 hazard means a hazard of prescribed description that after a
numerical calculation using national statistical information is banded A, B or C.
Category 2 hazards are those banded D or lower.

Enforcement

All enforcement must follow the principals of the enforcement concordat adopted by
the Council and prevailing Guidance from the Office of the Deputy Prime Minister
(ODPM).

A full property survey will normally be undertaken as good practice to determine all
the extent of HHSRS hazards, however, when urgent action is considered
necessary or there is no co-operation from a landlord or owner, action will be taken
based on the evidence available rather than, for instance, pursuing a warrant to
effect a whole property assessment.

Before coming to any decision in respect of enforcement it is necessary to consider
many criteria. These include:

. The seriousness of the offence

o The past history of the property

) Confidence in the management

o The consequences of non-compliance

) The likely effectiveness of the various enforcement options

When the Council becomes aware of a hazard or defect that is not so serious that
immediate action is required, it will follow the procedure below:

a) Informal stage: write to the owner or landlord outlining the nature of the
problem and asking what remedial action will be taken to remedy the hazard
or defect within 10 days (in accordance with prescribed regulation which may
from time to time be amended by the Secretary of State). Where an owner or
landlord indicates their intention to take action the Council will have regard to
this and the timescales involved. If the action is considered to be reasonable
progress will be monitored to ensure the works are carried out to a
satisfactory standard. However, if no response is given or works are not
progressing satisfactorily the matter will pas on to the next stage of
enforcement.

57



7.3.5

7.4

7.4.1

7.4.2

7.4.3

7.4.4

b)  Prioritisation stage: will risk assess the property and prioritise action according
to:

o The number of Category 1 and Category 2 hazards
o The vulnerability of the current occupiers
o The hazard scores

. In the case of HMOs, whether they are licensable and the number of
storeys

This stage will be monitored on a monthly basis.

c) Formal stage: A schedule of works will be drawn up and formal notice served
within 28 days of the start of the formal stage unless there are good reasons
for delay.

There may be occasions when the Council considers that the risk to the occupant is
high enough to consider formal action without the informal stage. Factors include
the cost of repair, whether the current tenants are vulnerable tenants, and whether
the property exercises any imminent risk to the occupiers.

Enforcement Options

It is for the Council to determine the most appropriate course of action in relation to
the existence of hazards in all circumstances. The following options are available to
the Council when considering the most appropriate action:

o Serve an Improvement Notice

J Make a Prohibition Order

o Serve a Hazard Awareness Notice

) Take emergency remedial action

o Make an Emergency Prohibition Order
o Make a Demolition Order

o Declare a clearance area

The Council cannot take more than one of these actions (unless it is an emergency
action) at one time but can vary the action required if the action taken has proved
unsuccessful. Emergency procedures cannot be used for Category 2 hazards.

All Notices and Orders will have a Statement of Reason attached to them. The
Statement will include why the type of enforcement taken has been pursued. A copy
of the Statement will accompany the Notice or Order.

Consideration will be given to the views of owners, landlords and tenants before
formal action is taken. Examples of these considerations include:

o When an owner-occupier brings to the attention of the Council that they do not
wish for formal action to be taken because they could not cope with the
upheaval. In this situation the Council may need to consider whether the
benefits of carrying out the works outweigh the health benefits once the work

58



7.4.5

7.5
7.5.1

7.6
7.6.1

7.6.2

7.6.3
7.7
7.7.1

is complete. If the hazard were one that might cause harm to a visitor, this
would override this consideration.

o If the Landlord is a large registered social landlord the Council will consider
whether the repair may be dealt within a large programme of work in a group
repair scheme. The Council would have to be convinced that a programme of
work existed.

o Tenants can sometimes worry that the landlord may increase the rent as a
result of the improvements that the landlord is asked to carry out. The
following may need to be considered; the type of tenancy agreement i.e. what
rights the tenants have, the types of risks associated with the hazards,
whether the actual tenants are vulnerable®, or whether children reside in the
premises, etc. HHSRS is based on a potential risk to the most vulnerable
group specified in the HHSRS guidance. However, if the Council decide to
take action we will be taking into consideration the current occupiers and,
where appropriate, any potential occupants.

* Vulnerable: excludes those who could be registered as chronically sick or
disabled. Registered disabled would have the potential need for specialist
adaptations to make dwellings suitable. The vulnerable groups in HHSRS are
based on age and this can be found in the technical guidance.

When enforcement action is taken and there is a change in circumstances, where
the recipient is no longer responsible, the notice will be enforced on their successor.
However any outstanding liabilities such as fines will remain with the original
person.

Appeals

There is a right of appeal against any Notice, Order or Decision made by the
Council. All appeals are made to the Residential Property Tribunal (RPT). The RPT
may confirm, quash or vary the Notice, Order or Decision.

Improvement Notice

An Improvement Notice can be served on all category 1 and 2 hazards. The
minimum consequence must be the removal of all Category 1 hazards, which
should not recur within 12 months of the Notice. Where practicable, all Category 1
and moderate Category 2 hazards will be included in the same Notice.

Timescales for remedial works must be 28 days or more from the date of serving a
notice. Once the work has been completed, the Notice will be revoked formally in
writing. Improvement Notices are registered as local land charges.

Any appeal must be made within 21 days of the service of a notice.
Prohibition Order

A Prohibition Order can be served for both Category 1 and 2 hazards. It would
become effective after 28 days. It may prohibit the use of part or all of the premises
for some or all purposes or place restrictions on the numbers of occupants. A
Prohibition Order would be use, for example:

59



7.7.2

7.7.3

7.8
7.8.1

7.8.2

7.9

7.9.1

7.9.2

7.9.3

7.10
7.10.1

7.11

7.11.1

7.12

o Where remedial action is unreasonable or impractical and conditions present
a high risk

o To specify the maximum number of persons that should occupy a dwelling

o specify the maximum number of persons who should occupy the dwelling
where there is insufficient facilities

) To prohibit the use of a dwelling to a specific group of people

In determining whether to serve a Prohibition Order, consideration will be given to
the risk of social exclusion, whether the premises is listed or in a conservation area,
whether the owner proposes to consider alternative uses, the effects on the
community, and the effect on the availability of local accommodation for re-housing
any displaced occupants. However, the health, safety and well being of the
occupants and their visitors will be an over-riding consideration.

Prohibition Orders will be registered as local land charges. Any appeal against a
Prohibition Order must be made within 28 days.

Suspending a Notice

The Council may suspend the action specified in an Improvement Notice or
Prohibition Order. The notice to suspend may specify certain trigger points such as
non-compliance to an undertaking given to the Council or a change in occupancy.
The trigger points will be clearly stated in the notice.

The Council will consider the likely tenants who in the next 12 months could
potentially occupy a premise before deciding to suspend a notice.

Emergency Measures

Where the Council are satisfied that a hazard presents an imminent risk to the
occupants of premises, emergency measures can be taken. It is for the Council to
determine what constitutes an imminent risk.

Emergency measures include emergency remedial action or an Emergency
Prohibition Order.

Any appeal must be made within 28 days. An appeal will not prevent emergency
action from being taken.

Emergency Remedial Action

Where a Category 1 hazard exists and there is an imminent risk of harm to the
occupier, the Council may enter premises (by invite or with a warrant) to take
remedial action to remove the imminent risk of serious harm. The Council will serve
a notice within 7 days of taking emergency remedial action.

Emergency Prohibition Orders

If, in the view of the Council, a hazard involves a serious risk of harm to the
occupant the Council may enter a premises to prohibit part of a premises. The order
will take effect immediately. It is for the Council to consider whether the action
carried out gives grounds to revoke or vary the order.

Hazard Awareness Notice

60



7.12.1

7.12.2

7.13
7.13.1

7.14
7.14.1

7.15
7.15.1

7.15.2

7.15.3

The Hazard Awareness Notice is discretionary and may be used as a response to a
minor hazard. There is no appeal and the notice is not registered as a local land
charge. It may be considered where the Landlord has agreed to the carryout repairs
informally.

A Hazard Awareness Notice may also be considered for Category 1 hazards where
the Council wish to inform an owner-occupier of a particular hazard. In
consideration of this, the Council must take account of the likelihood of harm to
people who may visit the property and the vulnerability of the occupants. The
Council must be able to justify why it took a more lenient approach. It may not be
appropriate to serve a Hazard Awareness Notice where there are risks of falling
objects such as slates from a roof. This is because there would be a clear risk to
those visiting the premise as well as the owner-occupier.

Demolition Orders

Demolition Orders provide a possible response to a Category 1 hazard and in
deciding on this enforcement option, the Council will take account of:

o The health and safety of the occupants.
o The options for re-housing of occupants.

o The demand for and sustainability of the accommodation if the hazard was
remedied.

o The prospective use of the cleared site.

) The local environment and the impact of a cleared site on the appearance and
character of the neighbourhood.

Clearance Areas

The Council can declare a clearance area if it is satisfied that each of the residential
buildings in the area contains one or more Category 1 hazard (Or if these buildings
are dangerous/harmful to the health and safety of the occupants as a result of bad
arrangements) and other buildings, if any, in the area are dangerous or harmful to
the health of the inhabitants. A clearance area can also be declared in
circumstances set out under section 47 of the Housing Act 2004.

Powers of Access

The Council will exercise its Power of Entry into properties to carry out relevant
duties under the Housing Act provided that:

o The officer concerned is authorised in writing by the Council.

o The officer has given 24 hours notice to the owner or occupier of the premises
they intend to enter.

If this proves unsuccessful, the Council will apply for a magistrates’ warrant to effect
the power of entry by force if necessary. The Council will also seek a magistrates’
warrant If it is considered that prior warning is likely to defeat the purpose of the
entry.

The Council also has the power to require documentation to be produced in
connection with its duties contained within Parts 1 — 4 of the Housing Act 2004.

61



7.16
7.16.1

7.17
7.17.1

7.17.2

7.18
7.18.1

7.18.2

7.19
7.19.1

Such Notice will specify the consequences of not complying. Copies of documents
can be retained by the Council.

Non-Compliance

If a Notice served by the Council in relation to its duties under Parts 1 — 4 of the
Housing Act 2004 is not complied with, the Council will consider the following
options:

o Prosecution

o Carry out the works in default

o Carry out the works in default and prosecute

o Consider whether a formal caution is appropriate
Prosecutions

Prosecution may result if there is a failure to comply with any Statutory Notice or
Order. Authority to prosecute for non-compliance of a Notice or Order will be sought
in accordance with the Council’s prosecution policy as set out at the annex to this

policy.

When the circumstances of a case are considered to warrant prosecution, all
relevant information and evidence will be considered to enable a consistent, fair and
objective decision to be taken, in accordance with the code for Crown prosecutors.

Power to Charge for Enforcement Action

Local authorities have the power to make a reasonable charge as a means for
recovering expenses incurred in serving an Improvement Notice or making a
Prohibition or Demolition Order. The Council will levy a charge for these services
based on the time spent by officers in determining a Notice to be necessary.
Charges will include, but will not be limited to time spent:

o Inspecting the premise.
o Drafting a Notice and requisite schedules.
o Administration costs in serving the Notice and securing payment.

A schedule will be sent detailing the time spent by Council staff in enforcing any
Notice together with an invoice. Time spent carrying out work in default or remedial
action will be covered separately. Officers will not charge for their time in
circumstances that were not in the owner or landlord’s control such as when a
tenant or builders fails to attend a pre-arranged meeting.

Works in Default

If a Works Notice has not been complied with and/or prosecution action has been
taken, the Council has the power to carry out the works in default. This course of
action will be authorised by the Head of Service or by the Public Health Manager. If
a decision is made to carry out works in default the officer will contact the person on
whom the Notice was served indicating the Council’s intentions and prepare a
Specification of Works. The specifications will convey the exact works required by
the Notice, e.g. quantities, quality and type of repairs, replacements, components

62



7.19.2

7.19.3

7.19.4

7.19.5
7.19.6

7.19.7

7.19.8

7.20
7.20.1

7.20.2

etc., to ensure contractors are tendering for the same work. Specifications giving
alternatives for individual items are not appropriate.

If Building Regulation Approval or Planning Permission is required, appropriate
arrangements will be made, including suitable plans and application forms. Works
will be procured in accordance with the Council’s Code of Procurement.

If further works become apparent during the course of the contract, a decision will
be taken as to whether they are essential and valid in connection with the total
works being undertaken.

If they can be classified as being “unforeseen” in relation to works already being
undertaken, the builder will be asked to amend his price. This might involve works
not originally considered necessary but subsequently found to be necessary to
ensure satisfactory completion of an item and are within the terms of the notice, for
example:

) An original specification for replacement of 5m? of plasterwork. Once wall
coverings are removed more extensive replastering is considered necessary.

o More extensive treatment required to cure dry rot.

o Replacement of windows required for windows that were thought feasible to
repair.

Any new works identified will require the service of new Works Notices.

On completion of the works, the contractor should submit an invoice for the works
carried out which will be checked against the original tender. Any unforeseen works
carried out will require additional documentary evidence. If satisfactory, it will then
be passed for payment.

Any guarantees, etc procured are to be passed to the owner on payment of the
outstanding debt.

Demands for payment would be similar to the above procedure and would comprise
the cost of the contractor carrying out the work plus the Local Authority officer costs
as indicated previously for works such as administration, site visits, mileage etc.

Risk Assessment

Where a Category 1 hazard exists, the Council has a duty to take action. However
the Council does have discretion on how to prioritise action - the greater the hazard,
the higher the risk to the most vulnerable occupant and the greater the urgency for
action. It may be necessary for the Council to prioritise their cases on the highest
risk first. The number of individual Category 2 hazards will also be considered in the
officer decision.

The Council has discretion to enforce the rectification of Category 2 hazards and
this will be left to the professional judgement of the authorised officer handling the
investigation. In determining enforcement against such hazards, the officer will have
regard to, amongst other things:

o The local Housing Stock Condition Survey findings

o Whether the Council is already taking action to deal with Category 1 hazards
in which case moderate Category 2 (D and E) hazards will be enforced at the
same time.

63



7.21
7.21.1

7.21.2

7.21.3

o The potential for the hazard to become a Category 1 hazard within a short
duration (under 2 years)

The HHSRS Link to HMO Licensing

The Council does not need to consider HHSRS before an HMO licence is issued.
However, if during the licensing process the Council have reason to be concerned
about the health and safety of the occupants and the likelihood of Category 1
hazards, it will take action as described within this policy. The Council also has a
duty to ensure that no licensed property has any Category 1 hazards within 5 years
of the licence being granted. The Council cannot attach conditions to the licence on
the expectations of the works being carried out.

In HMOs the assessment of hazards is made for each unit of accommodation,
which will reflect the contribution of conditions in the common parts.

If an Enforcement Notice is served on an HMO and it reverts to single occupation,
the Council will consider whether the impact of the hazard has diminished and take
appropriate action.

64



ANNEX
HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PROSECUTION POLICY

In keeping with its preventative role, the Council will use a variety of means to ensure that
the law, which it is required to enforce, is complied with within the Huntingdonshire District.
These means will include education, advice, guidance, warning letters, Improvement
Notices, Prohibition Notices, other Statutory Notices issuing a caution and prosecution.

The Council will use discretion in deciding whether to initiate a prosecution and recognises
that the decision to prosecute is significant and could have far reaching consequences on
the offender. Before deciding to recommend a prosecution, they will take account the
criteria set out below.

The authority to make a decision to prosecute is generally set out in the Council’s Scheme of
Delegation. It is usually delegated to the Director of Operational Services or Head of Service
after consultation with the Chairman of the appropriate Panel or Executive Member.
However in the case of failure to comply with a statutory notice prosecution is at the
discretion of the Director of Operational Services or the Head of Environmental and
Community Health Services.

In determining whether or not to institute legal proceedings the public interest will be of
paramount consideration. The following matters will be taken into account in addition to any
other matter that may be considered relevant in any particular case.

Whether the evidence available is sufficiently reliable, admissible and substantial to provide
a realistic prospect of conviction, having regard to the evidential and public interest tests set
down in the Code for Crown Prosecutors and any other prosecution code or government
guidance for the time being relevant to the case under consideration. Such consideration will
include:-

e The general record and attitude of the offender.
e The attitude and reliability of any witnesses.

o The gravity of the offence (including where the alleged offence involves a flagrant
breach of the law such that public health, safety or well-being is put at risk).

e The failure by offenders to comply with lawful written directions of Officers provided
the offenders having been given reasonable opportunity to comply with those
directions.

e The failure by defendants to comply in full or in part with the requirements of a
Statutory Notice.

o Whether it is desirable to deter others from similar failures to comply with the law.

65



o Whether it is more appropriate after consideration of all the circumstances and on
being satisfied of a person's guilt and the offender accepting that guilt to offer a
formal caution in accordance with guidance laid down in Home Office Circular
18/1994 as may be amended from time to time.

This prosecution policy also relates to the prosecution of individuals and individual managers
or directors where the Council consider that a conviction is warranted and it can be shown
that the offence was committed with their consent or connivance or to have been attributable
to neglect on their part.

In consultation with their supervising officer and, where appropriate, the Council’s legal
advisor, the investigating officer(s) will gather appropriate evidence and prepare the case on
behalf of the Council. Where, having considered all the evidence, it is considered that a
prosecution may be warranted, a written report will be prepared for consideration and
authorisation. Following written authorisation to proceed, the Council’s legal service will
instigate the prosecution. Regard will be had to the requirements of Police and Criminal
Evidence Act 1984(PACE) and the Criminal Procedure and Investigation Act 1996 (CPIA)
and the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (and associated orders) and any
relevant procedural documents.

Officers of the local authority have a variety of powers available to them for the purpose of
the discharge the functions of the enforcing authority. These include, in appropriate cases
as permitted by statute, the power of entry to relevant premises at any reasonable time (or at
any time if it appears that there is serious problem), to seize equipment, seize documents,
and to take any other suitably authorised person or a constable and any equipment or
materials required for any purpose for which the power of entry is being exercised.

If it is believed that entry may be refused, or entry by force may be necessary a warrant to
enter will be sought from the magistrates. Refusal of entry, as permitted by the law, is
obstruction and will lead to prosecution in all but exceptional circumstances.

Having decided to prosecute, the policy of the Council is to proceed without any
unnecessary delay. Once the prosecution has been determined by a court of law, the
Council will contact all its witnesses to inform them of the outcome.

66



ANNEX 2

DRAFT HMO LICENSING CONDITIONS

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

HMO LICENCE CONDITIONS

Mandatory Conditionsin accordance with Housing Act Requirements

1.

If gas is supplied to the house the Gas Safety (Installation and Use) Regulations
1998 shall be complied with in al respects. In particular an annual safety check
shall be carried out be a CORGI registered engineer on each gas appliance/flue.

A current Gas Safety Certificate (obtained within the last twelve months) in respect
of the house shall be supplied with the application to Huntingdonshire District
Council and annually thereafter.

Electrical appliances made available in the house by the licence holder shall be kept
in asafe condition. A declaration, on demand, shall be supplied to Huntingdonshire
District Council asto the safety of such appliances.

The furniture made available by the licence holder shall be kept in a safe condition.
A declaration, on demand, shall be supplied to Huntingdonshire District Council as
to the safety of such furniture.

A fire detection and alarm system designed to meet the requirements of BS5839 —
6:2004 shall be installed in the house. The fire detection and alarm system in the
property shall be inspected, tested and serviced (where relevant) in accordance with
BS 5839 — part 1:2002, sections 6 and 7. In particular the following shall be carried
out:

o every six months checks on the system shall be carried out in accordance with
clause 45.3

o every twelve months checks on the system shall be carried out in accordance
with clause 45.4

o Where provided independent smoke alarms shall be cleaned periodically in
accordance with the supplier’ sinstructions.

Throughout the period of the licence, inspection and servicing certificates in the
format recommended by BS 5839 — part 1:2002 should be submitted to the Council
upon demand by an authorised officer of the Council. The above mentioned checks
shall be carried out by a competent person. (NNICEIC, ECA or BFBSA contractors
who are familiar with all British Standards relating to automatic fire detection
systems are normally acceptable in this respect. Other contractors will be asked to
demonstrate their competence to the Council before acceptance of such certificates.

A declaration, on demand, shall be supplied to Huntingdonshire District Council as
to the condition and position of any smoke alarms in the property.

67



5. The licence holder shall supply to the occupiers of the house a written statement of
the terms on which they occupy it.

6 Additional Licence Conditions Considered necessary by Huntingdonshire District
Council

6.1 This is not an exhaustive list and the Council may attach other licence
conditions which it reasonably considers necessary in order to ensure effective
management, maintenance and operation of a House in Multiple Occupation.

1 The licence holder shall comply with The Management of Houses in Multiple
(England) Regulations 2006 (as from time to time may be amended) and any
Approved Code of Practice issued under Section 233 of the Housing Act 2004.

2. The electrical installation shall be kept safe and in proper working order and:

o a periodic check shall be undertaken in accordance with BS 7671 at intervals
of no more than five years.

o a periodic inspection report in the format recommended in Appendix 6 of BS
7671 shall, at any time during the period of the licence, be submitted to the
Council, upon demand by an authorised officer. The report shall be issued by
a competent person. (A competent person in this respect includes NICEIC
enrolled contractors of ECA members who regularly inspect, and are qualified
to inspect domestic electrical installation systems and whose work is subject to
regular assessment).

3. The licence holder shall ensure at all times, gardens, yards and other areas within the
curtilage of the house are kept in areasonably clean and tidy condition and free from
rodent infestation.

4, The licence holder shall notify all occupants at the beginning of their occupancy of
the arrangements in place to deal with emergency and other repairs.

5. The licence holder shall at all times comply with relevant landlord and tenant
legislation.

6. The licence holder shall maintain the exterior of the property in reasonable

decorative order and reasonable repair.

7. The licence holder shall make suitable and adequate provision for refuse storage and
collection at the house.

8. The escape lighting in the property shall be inspected, tested and serviced generally
in accordance with clause 12 of BS 5266 — 1:1999. In particular the following shall
be carried out:

o every six months checks on the system shall be carried out in accordance with
clause 12.4.4

o every twelve months checks on the system shall be carried out in accordance
with clause 12.4.5

68



10.

11.

o for self contained luminaries with sealed batteries, after the first three yearly
test, the three yearly test shall be carried out annually in accordance with
clause 12.4.6

Throughout the period of the licence, periodic and test certificates in the format
recommended by BS 5266 — part 1:1999 shall be submitted to the Council upon
demand by an authorised officer of the Council. The checks shall be carried out by a
competent person. (NICEIC, ECA or BFPSA contractors who are familiar with al
British Standards relating to emergency escape lighting systems are normally
acceptable in this respect. Other contractors will be asked to demonstrate their
competence to the Council before acceptance of the certificates.)

The licence holder shall comply with the (following)(attached) schedule of
(restrictions)(and/or)(prohibitions) on the use or occupation of the house (and/or)
(particular parts of the house) by persons occupying it.

The licence holder shall supply occupiers with awritten statement of the terms of the
tenancy which incorporates details of how deposits will be held and terms of return,
an inventory of contents and condition at the commencement of the tenancy; details
of rent and dates due, rent payment methods, and how and when rent may be
increased and provide for a means of contact for repairs, reporting etc.

The licence holder shall take reasonable and practicable steps to prevent or reduce
anti-social behaviour by persons occupying or visiting the house:

o The licence holder shall ensure that each occupier is made aware of any
conditions imposed by the Council relating to the behaviour of occupants, and
that compliance with any such conditions is made a condition of occupancy.
Those conditions are that the occupants shall:

o not cause nuisance and annoyance to other occupants or to neighbouring
residents

o comply with arrangements made by the manager for the storage and disposal
of refuse

o not cause damage to fixtures, fittings, fire precautions, or premises

o not use abusive or threatening behaviour

o allow access to the agent/landlord to maintain communal areas and, with
reasonable notice, to carry out works within the occupants own
accommodation

69



ANNEX 3
DRAFT HMO STANDARDS

7 Standards for Bedsits

Each unit of accommodation shall have adequate means of space heating.
Each kitchen area shall be fitted with:
e mechanical extract ventilation;
e adequate refuse disposal facilities;
e suitably sited fire blanket;
e adequate provision of fire doors and fire detection.
Each bathroom shall be adequately heated and ventilated. Ventilation should include
humidistat-controlled extraction.
Appropriate fire detection and fire precaution equipment shall be fitted to the property..

|Bedsit with sole use of:

|Item \Sizeor number
4 hot rings and grill and oven (one household) or
Cooker 2 hot rings and grill and oven (for single person
househol d)
|Si nk \S| nk and drainer with hot & cold water supply
'Worktop /A minimum of 1 metre run x 0.6 metre deep
Electrical sockets, over A minimum of 4 sockets, excluding those for refrigerators
worktop and other fixed equipment
Singlewall unit or single base unit for one person. For
Dry food storage more than one person proportionately more storage space
is needed
REMEEE LT, Wil iEzr Standard size refrigerator
compartment
|Bath/shower \1 for each household with hot & cold water supply
'Wash hand-basin 11 for each household with hot & cold water supply
Toilet 11 for each household

Bedsit with shared use of:

If the above facilities are not provided within each bedsit, the following shared standards
apply.

|Item ]Size or number

4 hot rings and grill and oven for

Cooker
each 5 occupants

Sink Sink and drainer with hot and cold |WVhere |tems§r(;speuf|ed for each 5
water supply for each 5 occupants occupants and there are 6-10 occupants

70



Electrica
sockets, over
worktop

4 sockets for each 5 occupants,
excluding those for refrigerators
and other fixed equipment

Dry food
storage

Wall unit or base unit for each
occupant

Refrigerator,
with freezer
compartment

one standard size refrigerator for
each 5 occupants

Bath/shower

1 for each 5 occupants with hot &
cold water supply

|Toi|et

11 for each 5 occupants

Wash-basin

1 for each 5 occupants with hot &

cold water supply

Each shared kitchen must be no more than one floor away from any letting — except where
a suitable equipped communal dining room is provided next to each shared kitchen facility.

For advice and more information contact:

Environmental Health Services, Pathfinder House, St Mary’s Street, Huntingdon,

PE29 3TN

71




8 Standards for Shared Houses

The accommodation shall have adequate means of space heating.

Each kitchen area shall be fitted with:

mechanical extract ventilation;

adequate refuse disposal facilities;

suitably sited fire blanket;

adequate provision of fire doors and fire detection.

Each bathroom shall be adequately heated and ventilated. Ventilation should include
humidistat-controlled extraction.

Appropriate fire detection and fire precaution equipment shall be fitted to the property.

Item 'Size or Number

4 hot rings and grill and

S oven for each 5 occupants

Sink and drainer with hot
Sink and cold water supply for
each kitchen/5 occupants

0.5 metre run per occupant

Worktop plus 0.5 metre x 0.6 metre
SE5p Where items are specified for
_ 4 sockets for each 5 each 5 occupants and there are
Electrical sockets, over occupants, excluding those |g-10 occupants then the
worktop for refrigerators and other  ||andiord should double the
fixed equipment number/size to be provided
Dry food storage Single wall unit for each
occupant

A minimum of one standard
sizerefrigerator for each 5
occupants

1 for each 5 occupants with
hot & cold water supply

Toilet 1 for each 5 occupants

1 for each 5 occupants with
hot & cold water supply

Refrigerator, with freezer
compartment

Bath/shower

Wash hand-basin

A suitable equipped communal dining room should be provided next to each shared
kitchen facility.

For further advice and more information:
Contact

Environmental Health Services, Pathfinder House, St Mary’s Street, Huntingdon,
PE29 3TN

Phone: 01480 388302, email : EnvHealth@huntsdc.gov.uk

72



Agenda Item 9

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PLANNING & FINANCE 11" April 2006
CABINET 27" April 2006
COUNCIL 28" June 2006

IMPLEMENTING ELECTRONIC GOVERNMENT (IEG) STATEMENT 2006
(Report by the Head of Information Management)

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek approval to submit the final IEG 6 statement by the
OPDM deadline of 10" April 2006. Due to the late issue of guidance by the ODPM and
the need to progress the IEG through the usual HDC approval process we will be
submitting a statement which has only received COMT approval. We will re-submit the
IEG once it has received Council approval in June.

2. SUPPORTING / BACKGROUND INFORMATION

2.1 The Council is required to submit a statement of progress against e-government targets to
the Office of the Deputy Prime Minister (ODPM) each year. Statements were submitted in
2001, 2002, 2003 and 2004. In return the Council received capital grants of, respectively,
£200k, £200k, £350k and £150k. A further statement — IEG5 — was submitted in
December 2005.

2.2 The IEGS6 is attached to this paper. The sections which are still subject to change are:
Section 1 — Priority Outcomes - G8
Section 5 — Local e-Government Implementation Expenditure
Section 6 — Local e-Government Programme Efficiency Gains

2.3 In addition, Section 3 — BVPI 157%, contains the same data as in the previous submission,
due to insufficient timescales needed to collect updated figures. As a result this will now

be completed at a later date.

2.4 The status of the priority outcomes for HDC at the end of the ODPM IEG Programme
(31/3/06) are as follows:

Status Priority Outcome
Green R1, R2, R3, R5, R6, R8, R12, R14, R15, R18, R19, R20, R21, R22, R23,
R24, R25, R26, R27, R29
G1, G2, G3, G4, G5, G6, G7, G9, G14, G16, G18, G19, G20, G22, G23,

G24, G25

Amber R4 (page 6 of IEG6), R7, R9, R10, R13, R16, R28
G8, G10, G11, G12, G13, G15, G17, G21

Red R11 (p8)

! Best Value Performance Indicator 157 (BVPI 157) is the nationally set target for delivering or
supporting services by electronic means. It measures ‘the number of types of interactions that are
enabled for electronic delivery as a percentage of the types of interactions that are legally
permissible for electronic delivery’.

73



Green means that we have met the outcome. Amber means that we intend to meet the
outcome and have made progress towards doing so. However, Amber outcomes were
not met by 31/3/06 due, for example, to other priorities set by HDC, or restrictions
imposed by supplier’s software.

Red means we do not currently plan to meet the outcome. In the case of R11 this is due
to the excessive cost of the software interface. The Council may chose to re-visit this
outcome at a later date if other benefits “balance” the cost.

2.5 The document was compiled by the Customer First Team and input has been sought from
a number of services within the Council.

2.6 As with previous IEG statements, successful implementation of Amber outcomes will
depend on timely and sufficient input from all parts of the Council.

2.7 RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that:

o Cabinet approves the submission of the attached Implementing Electronic
Government (IEG) statement.

e Council confirms the submission of the attached Implementing Electronic Government
(IEG) statement.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The National Strategy for e-Government:
(http://www.Iocaleqov.qov.uk/Nimoi/sites/ODMP/resources/20021127%20FinaI%ZONS%ZOWith%ZOcover.pdf)

Defining e-Government Outcomes for 2005 to support the delivery of priority services & National
Strategy Transformation Agenda for Local Authorities in England:

(http://www.localegov.gov.uk/en/1/priorityoutcomes.html )

Contact Officers:
Chris Hall, Customer First Programme Manager 01480 388116

74



Huntingdonshire

ccccccccccccccc

IMPLEMENTING
ELECTRONIC GOVERNMENT
RETURN 2006 (IEG6)

"Meeting the targets for e-government”

75



Name of Authority: Huntingdonshire District Council
IEG Contact Name: Chris Hall
Email: Chris.Hall@Huntsdc.gov.uk

Telephone No: 01480 388116

Local Context

The six local authorities in Cambridgeshire continue to work together and share
knowledge on a wide variety of projects, the nature and degree of participation
depending on each Council’s local circumstances.

The main projects in which all six authorities are involved are:

e The Cambridgeshire Community Network (CCN), a Public Private Partnership
to provide broadband infrastructure across the County.

e The Cambridgeshire Community Portal, which provides a single access point
to each authority’s information and services. The Portal went live in May 2004
and is linked to the Police and NHS. Some town and parish councils and local
voluntary organisation have also been brought on board.

e The Cambridgeshire Smartcard project, which is at the pilot stage and which
is bringing together transport, library and leisure services.

HDC’s e-Government programme, Customer First, is on track to deliver all our|
objectives. As well as the three projects listed above, the main elements of the
programme are:

e A call centre, which went live in September 2005. We are sharing the
County’s technical infrastructure and signed an 8 year contract with them in
March 2005. We are also leasing space in their call centre building but have
employed our own staff and adopted different opening hours.

e A Customer Service Centre (CSC) in Huntingdon for face-to-face contact. We
have just completed tendering for the provision of a new headquarters, a CSC
and an operations centre. Members decided on the preferred solution on 7th
December 2005 and we expect to open the CSC in May 2007.

e A transactional website. We implemented a Content Management System in
July 2004 and are continuing to develop the site. We expect to introduce an
online payments & bookings in 2006/7.

Underpinning all of this work are:

e Sound governance principles. We have a Programme Board and employ
PRINCE 2 project management methodology.

76



e Effective change management processes - all Directors and Managers have
received three days’ change management training.

e A communication plan designed to ensure that members, staff and, in due
course, customers understand what we are doing and why, and have the
opportunity to provide input into the process to ensure that everyone’s needs
are met.

e A thorough review of our business processes. We have taken a measured
approach to implementation. We are placing great emphasis on business
process review and improvement to ensure that we increase our efficiency
and effectiveness rather than simply making our existing processes electronic.
We are confident that, as befits an authority assessed as Excellent in CPA,
our implementation of e-Government will result in:

o  Significant improvements in levels of customer service which are already
high.

o  Greater efficiency through streamlined processes and better use of
information.

o More effective and joined-up working with our partner organisations.

o  An Information Audit which will lead to a rationalisation of our information
holdings and consequent improvement in our information management.

The call centre implementation has already resulted in improved call-handling
performance due to the increased resources being deployed and the use of a
Customer Relationship Management system. Lost call rates are down, the average
time to answer a call has reduced significantly, and the percentage of calls dealt with
first-time by our advisors is already exceeding our targets. Our primary
e-Government priority in 2006 is to transfer many more services to our Call Centre.

Our e-Government Strategy is driven by our customer service strategy, and the
focus is on improving customer service rather than reducing costs. However, we are
implementing measurement mechanisms to capture efficiency savings in order to
meet the requirements of ‘Delivery Efficiency in Local Services'.

We are confident that take-up of Electronic Service Delivery will be high because:

e  Our approach is customer-driven rather than technology-driven.

e Huntingdonshire is a relatively affluent area with a high level of IT literacy and
home computer ownership.

e We have high take-up of existing electronic services — for example 72% of
Council Tax payers pay by direct debit.

e Much customer usage is driven by us, for example by implementing a call
centre to deal with customer contact by telephone and introducing mobile
technology to take services to the customer rather than having them come to
us.

77




We have ensured that we provide the benefits of e-Government to those least able
to access technology themselves:

e We were a Beacon Council for Social Inclusion through ICT in 2003/4 and are
continuing to support the provision of e-learning points in rural locations
throughout the District.

e Having provided an ICT centre in the Oxmoor area of Huntingdon, one of the
District’s most deprived wards, we have moved on to set up Customer
Information Centres in Yaxley and Ramsey and are scheduled to provide one
in St Neots.

Note : Please note that the date for the implementation of Government Connect is
arbitrary and is only included as the ESD Toolkit software will not allow submission
of IEG 6 unless a date is present. The Council will make a decision on whether to
implement Government Connect based on an assessment of local priorities and
needs at a later date.

/8



Section 1 - Priority Outcomes (self-assessment)

Satisfactory progress towards delivery of the listed priority outcomes listed below is
required within the remit for achieving e-government by 2005. See
http://www.odpm.gov.uk/index.asp?id=1002882&PressNoticelD=1546 and

http://www.idea.gov.uk/knowledge.

Outcome And Transformation Area Description

Status at 31/12/2005 Status at 31/03/2006

R1 Parents/guardians to apply online for school places
for children for the 2007 school year. The admissions
process starts about a year before the beginning of the
school year, e.g. September 2006 for 2007 entry.

Green
30/09/2005

Green
30/09/2005

Comment: The County Council are leading on this. As soon as the
information is available on their website we will provide a deep link
from our website to the relevant information.

R2 Online access to information about educational
support services that seek to raise the educational
attainment of Looked After Children.

Green Green
31/07/2004 31/07/2004

Comment: The implementation of the Content Managment System
(CMS) has ensured that we offer links from our website to
County’s. Our education website pages provide deep links to the
http://www.camlearn.net/home.php on Cambridgeshire County
Council website.
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk/Community+and+People/Adult+and+co
mmunity+education

G1 Development of an Admissions Portal and / or
e-enabled telephone contact centre to assist parents,
carers and children in their choice of, and application to
local schools

Green
31/07/2004

Green
31/07/2004

Comment: The implementation of the Content Managment System
(CMS) has ensured that we offer links from our website to
County’s.

If already 'green' on R1, R2 & G1 above please comment
on

E1 Agreed baseline and targets for take-up of online
schools admissions service and educational attainment
of Looked After Children.

Otherwise you may leave this row blank.

Comment: Huntingdonshire District Council (HDC) do not have
any targets for this service as this is the responsibilty of
Cambridgeshire County Council.

R3 One stop direct online access and deep linking to
joined up A-Z information on all local authority services
via website or shared telephone contact centre using the
recognised taxonomy of the Local Government Category
List (see www.laws-project.org.uk ).

Green Green
31/03/2005 31/03/2005

Comment: LGCL tags are now in place. This information will be
available to the public and call centre agents via our website, which
contains an A to Z of services. This in turn links to the County
Council where appropriate.

79




Outcome And Transformation Area Description Status at 31/12/2005 Status at 31/03/2006
R4 Local authority and youth justice agencies to Amber Amber
co-ordinate the secure online sending, sharing of and 04/05/2005 04/05/2005

access to information in support of crime reduction
initiatives in partnership with the local community.

Comment: As a consequence of the anti-social behavior initiative
we will have to share data with the Police and other partners. The
Police require this to be via the Government Secure Intranet (GSI).
HDC has recently been selected as a pilot site by the Department
for Work and Pensions (DWP) for trials of a Closed User Group
(CUG). This CUG will allow transmission of e-mails through the
Governments Secure Intranet (GSI) by investigators employed by
the DWP and those based at HDC. Currently there are no
confirmed dates for implementation. One reason for this is that
funding for the trials will be provided in full by the DWP, but the
department dealing with this matter has not yet received any
funding to finance the initiative. However, we anticipate a go live
date before the end of the current financial year. As a result of
requirements relating to the Licensing, the Council has applied to
join to CJIT; membership is expected to be operational in April
2006. At the same time, we will continue to monitor the re-launch of
Government Connect.

G2 Empowering and supporting local organisations,
community groups and clubs to create and maintain their
own information online, including the promotion of job
vacancies and events.

Green Green
28/02/2003 28/02/2003

Comment: Hunts Electronic Learning Points project empowers and
trains local people to use PCs, provides local websites and access
to online learning and services. Our Leisure website,
www.huntsleisure.org, allows local groups and clubs to list events
and contact details.

If already 'green' on R3, R4 & G2 above please comment
on

E2 Agreed baseline and targets for customer satisfaction
and efficiency savings between the supplying
organisations on shared community information
initiatives.

Otherwise you may leave this row blank.

Comment: We do not ask this question to residents at this point in
time but we are planning an annual consultation with residents to
establish whether they feel they have good access to the councils
services.

R5 Public access to online reports, minutes and agendas
from past council meetings, including future meetings
diary updated daily.

Green
15/03/2003

Green
15/03/2003

Comment: Democratic Services’ information, including public
access to minutes, agendas, reports and a future meetings diary, is
updated dynamically and is available on the Council’s website.
Modern.gov delivers access to all this information plus Councillor
details.

R6 Providing every Councillor with the option to have an
easy-to-manage set of public web pages (for community
leadership purposes) that is either maintained for them,
or that they can maintain themselves.

Green
31/07/2004

Green
31/07/2004

Comment: The Content Management System gives us the ability
to allow each Councillor to have a page to maintain.

G3 Citizen participation and response to forthcoming
consultations and decisions on matters of public interest
(e-consultation), including facility for citizens to sign up
for email and/or SMS text alerts on nominated topics.

Green
31/07/2004

Green
31/07/2004

Comment: Consultation surveys are available on our website now.
Citizens can sign up for mailing lists on www.huntsleisure.org
website and we are currently evaluating expanding this service.

G4 Establishment of multimedia resources on local policy
priorities accessible via public website (e.g. video &
audio files).

Green Green
31/07/2004 31/07/2004

Comment: We have the facilities, equipment and technical
experience to do this and we have available on our website a
Huntingdonshire in Perspective video.

80




Outcome And Transformation Area Description

Status at 31/12/2005 Status at 31/03/2006

If already 'green’ on R5, R6, G3 & G4 above please
comment on

E3 Agreed baseline and targets for e-participation
activities, including targets for citizen satisfaction.

Otherwise you may leave this row blank.

Comment: We are currently reviewing how best to survey those
customers who use e-Services and we hope to introduce
measurement in the future.

R7 Online public reporting/applications, procurement and
tracking of environmental services, includes waste
management and street scene (e.g. abandoned cars,
graffiti removal, bulky waste removal, recycling).

Amber
26/06/2003

Amber
26/06/2003

Comment: Online delivery of Streetscene services will form part of
our Citizen Portal channel of HDC's Customer Relationship
Management System. It is anticipated that these services will be
available online in 2006-7.

R8 Online receipt and processing of planning and
building control applications.

Green
31/03/2003

Green
31/03/2003

Comment: Online submission and payment of planning
applications has been implemented in conjunction with the
Planning Portal. In addition, Planning Public Access enables
customers to view, comment on and track the status of planning
applications online via the Council’s website. Initial research
conducted with Building Control customers indicates no desire for
web-based receipt and processing of applications. However, we
can implement a Uniform module to meet this requirement if
necessary.

G5 Public access to corporate Geographic Information
Systems (GIS) for map-based data presentation of
property-related information.

Green
31/03/2003

Green
31/03/2003

Comment: Planning Public Access, available via HDC's website,
provides customers with the ability to query the LLPG to identify a
property and then zoom to a map of the property, and display
additional property-related information. The delivery of Streetscene
services will meet many of these requirements.

G6 Sharing of Trading Standards data between councils
for business planning and enforcement purposes.

Green
01/09/2005

Green
01/09/2005

Comment: We have set up a procedure so that information, which
may be relevant to Trading Standards, is passed on to them via an
electronic form.

G7 Use of technology to integrate planning, regulation
and licensing functions (including Entertainment
Licensing and Liquor Licensing) in order to improve
policy and decision-making processes around the
prevention of anti-social behaviour.

Green
31/03/2003

Green
31/03/2003

Comment: HDC has implemented an integrated business system,
which includes planning, building control and licensing. In addition,
integration with the LLPG enables staff to have an holistic view of
permit and regulatory information relating to any property and
improve policy and decision-making. We will also be able to
securely share information with partner organisations such as the
Police via secure e-mail.

If already 'green' on R7, R8, G5, G6 & G7 above please
comment on

E4 Agreed baseline and targets for take-up of planning
and regulatory services online, including targets for
customer satisfaction and efficiency savings.

Otherwise you may leave this row blank.

Comment: There are currently no targets for take up of planning
services on line.

81




Outcome And Transformation Area Description Status at 31/12/2005 Status at 31/03/2006
R9 Appropriate online e-procurement solutions in place, Amber Amber
including as a minimum paperless ordering, invoicing 28/06/2005 28/06/2005

and payment.

Comment: We have carried out a procurement card trial.
Identification of significant entry costs to ESPO’s e-marketplace
have resulted in a re-appraisal of the e-procurement strategy. Plans
remain to implement paperless ordering and payment. Business
process review of purchase to pay underway in the context of major
re-organisation/new HQ project. Any future e-procurement strategy
and solution will be aligned with new organisational structures and
work methods. No date forecast yet for implementation.

G8 Establishment of a single business account (i.e. a
cross-departmental 'account’ run by the local authority
whereby businesses are allocated a unique identifier that
can be stored and managed via a corporate CRM
account facility supporting face-to-face, website and
contact centre transactions).

Amber
30/12/2005

Amber
30/12/2005

Comment: HDC's CRM supplier is currently reviewing the options
of including this functionality in the CRM system and they will
communicate results to us when they know more. We are an active
participant in a regional procurement group. Development of a
County wide e-procurement solution is under consideration with a
view to a collaborative solution. Already engaged with the Regional
Centre of Excellence.

G9 Regional co-operation on e-procurement between
local councils.

Green
31/03/2006

Amber
01/06/2005

Comment: We are an active participant in a regional procurement
group. Development to a regional e-procurement solution is
underway with a view to a collaborative solution. Already engaged
with the Regional Centre of Excellence.

If already 'green’ on R9, G8 & G9 above please comment
on

ES5 Access to virtual e-procurement 'marketplace’;

Comment:

E6 Inclusion of Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs) in
e-procurement programme, in order to promote the
advantages of e-procurement to local suppliers and
retain economic development benefits within local
community;

Comment:

E7 Agreed targets (please specify) for efficiency savings
by December 2005, including the % of undisputed
invoices paid in 30 days (BVPI 8).

Otherwise you may leave these rows blank.

Comment:

R10 Online facilities to be available to allow payments to
the council in ways that engender public trust and
confidence in local government electronic payment
solutions (e.g. email receipting/proof of payment, supply
of automatic transaction ID numbers).

Amber Amber
09/06/2003 09/06/2003

Comment: Roll out of corporate e-payments will meet these
requirements. The e-payments solution which is being implemented
has been delayed due to software errors.

R11 Delivery of 'added value' around online payment
facilities, including ability to check Council Tax and
Business Rate balances online or via touch tone
telephone dialling.

Red
01/06/2005

Red
01/06/2005

Comment: Delivery of added value services is not a priority for us
at present. Dependent upon suppliers providing suitable web
enabled products.

G10 Demonstration of efficiency savings and improved
collection rates from implementation of e-payments.

Amber Amber
09/06/2003 09/06/2003

Comment: Roll out of corporate e-payments will meet these
requirements.

82




Outcome And Transformation Area Description Status at 31/12/2005 Status at 31/03/2006
G11 Registration for Council Tax and Business Rates Amber Amber
e-billing for Direct Debit payers. 01/03/2005 01/03/2005

Comment: Work is still ongoing and it is hoped this will be fully
implemented in the first half of the new financial year.

If already 'green' on R10, R11, G10 & G11 above please
comment on

E8 Provision of facilities for making credit or debit card
payments via SMS text message for parking fines
(mobile phone).

Comment:

E9 Adoption of smart cards as standard for stored
payments (e.g. replacing swipe cards).

Comment:

E10 Agreed baseline and targets for reductions in unit
costs of payment transactions.

Otherwise you may leave these rows blank.

Comment:

R12 Online renewal and reservations of library books
and catalogue search facilities.

Green
31/03/2005

Green
31/03/2005

Comment: The implementation of the Content Management
System has ensured that we offer links from our website to
County’s. Our website deep links to the Cambridgeshire County
Councils library system pages both from our education and online
services pages. http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk/Online%20Services
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk/Community+and+People/Adult+and+co

mmunity+education

R13 Online booking of sports and leisure facilities,
including both direct and contracted-out operations.

Amber
09/06/2003

Amber
09/06/2003

Comment: A bookings and payments module will deliver this
functionality. Implementation requires an upgrade to the leisure
business system which is currently being installed. Once this is
complete the module will be implemented.

G12 Integrated ICT infrastructure and support to ensure
the consistent delivery of services across all access
channels (e.g. web, telephone, face to face) based on
e-enabled back offices and smart card interfaces for
council library, sports and leisure services.

Amber
09/06/2003

Amber
09/06/2003

Comment: CRM is now operational and we are working on the
integration of Back Office systems and the use of the CRM via the
web and Customer Service Centre. Cambridgeshire County
Council are carrying out a trial of smart cards; we anticipate that we
will implement smart cards for multiple District services following
this trial. We currently use swipe cards and a shared customer
database between our 5 Leisure Centres.

If already 'green’ on R12, R13 & G12 above please
comment on

E11 Agreed baseline and targets for take-up of library,
sports & leisure services online, including targets for
customer satisfaction and efficiency savings.

Otherwise you may leave this row blank.

Comment:

R14 Online facilities to be available to allow the public to
inspect local public transport timetables and information
via available providing organisation, including links to
'live' systems for interactive journey planning.

Green
31/07/2004

Green
31/07/2004

Comment: Cambridgeshire County Council provide this facility via
their website. We have a direct link to this information from our
transport planning pages, village database and tourist information

kiosk.

83




Outcome And Transformation Area Description Status at 31/12/2005 Status at 31/03/2006
R15 Online public e-consultation facilities for new Green Green
proposals on traffic management (e.g. controlled parking 28/02/2004 28/02/2004

zones (CPZs), traffic calming schemes), including
publication of consultation survey results.

Comment: We already carry out online consultation surveys and
publish the results on our website.

G13 E-forms for parking "contravention mitigation" (i.e.
appeal against the issue of a penalty charge notice),
including email naotification of form receipt and appeal
procedures.

Amber
09/06/2003

Amber
09/06/2003

Comment: As we are a rural district we do not issue enough
parking tickets each year for this to be a priority for us at the
moment.

G14 GIS-based presentation of information on roadworks
in the local area, including contact details and updated
daily.

Green Green
31/07/2004 31/07/2004

Comment: County provide mapping of roadworks on their website.
The implementation of the Content Management System has
ensured that we provide links to these pages.

If already 'green’ on R14, R15, G13 & G14 above please
comment on

E12 Agreed baseline and targets for customer
satisfaction and efficiency savings.

Otherwise you may leave this row blank.

Comment: HDC does measure customer satisfaction on Transport
issues. However, we do not measure against BVPI 103 as we are
not a Transport authority.

R16 E-enabled "one stop" resolution of Housing &
Council Tax Benefit enquiries via telephone, contact
centres, or via one stop shops using workflow tools and
CRM software to provide information at all appropriate
locations and enable electronic working from front to
back office.

Amber
09/06/2003

Amber
09/06/2003

Comment: Revenues and Benefits continue to have an Electronic
Document Managment system incorporating workflow
(Anite@work). Our pilot project to implement mobile working will
increase accessibility of this service. Because of this we will not be
deploying Housing Benefit or Council Tax calls to our Call Centre.

R17 Online facilities to be available to allow citizens or
their agents to check their eligibility for and calculate their
entitlement to Housing & Council Tax Benefit and to
download and print relevant claim forms.

Green Green
28/02/2002 28/02/2002

Comment: We already have a Benefits calculator and all the
relevant claim forms on the HDC website.

G15 Mobile office service using technology to offer
processing of Council Tax and Housing Benefit claims
directly from citizens homes.

Amber
01/06/2005

Amber
01/06/2005

Comment: Procurement to provide tablet PC's to assessment
visiting officers together with wireless connectivity to back office
systems to enable online benefit calculation is now complete.
Deployment plans to provide solution for processing New Claims,
Change of Circumstances and Interventions are now being applied.
New Claims should be ready by Mid May(2006). Solution to enable
remote collection of evidential information to support a benefit claim
using tablet PCs and wireless connectivity to the existing back
office document image processing system is now identified.
Commercial contracts being finalised with suppliers to enable
procurement to commence.

If already 'green' on R16, R17 & G15 above please
comment on

E13 Agreed baseline and targets for turnaround in
processing of Council Tax and Housing Benefit claims
(BVPI 78) and renewals.

Comment: HDC monitors its performance against this BVPI and
the implementation of new ways of working will be quantified
against this measure.

10

84




Outcome And Transformation Area Description

Status at 31/12/2005 Status at 31/03/2006

E14 Pre-qualification of Council Tax and Housing Benefit
claimants for other eligible entitlements (e.g. school
uniform grants, free school meals), including pre-filling of
relevant claim forms.

Otherwise you may leave these rows blank.

Comment: We currently have no plans to meet this outcome but
this position will be reviewed in the future.

R18 Comprehensive and dedicated information about
access to local care services available over the web and
telephone contact centres.

Green
31/07/2004

Green
31/07/2004

Comment: HDC does not provide care service it is the
responsibility of the County Council. A deep link is provided to their
Care Services Page.
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk/Community+and+People/Health.htm

R19 Remote web access or mediated access via
telephone (including outside of standard working hours
availability) for authorised officers to information about
individual 'care packages', including payments, requests
for service and review dates.

Green
31/07/2004

Green
31/07/2004

Comment: HDC does not provide care services it is the
responsibility of the County Council. A deep link is provided to their
Care Services Page.
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk/Community+and+People/Health.htm

G16 Systems to support joined-up working on children at
risk across multiple agencies.

Amber
31/12/2005

Green
31/03/2006

Comment: The County Council's plan to reengineer the children's
services continues and is beginning to move to a more detailed
implementation. In respect of the system element, the County
Council have just approved the business case for the introduction
of the Children's Information System. This system will pull together
the information from various bodies and sources. However, this is
currently about establishing the processes and policies not an
electronic system. This next stage is still dependent on the actual
systems being available on the market for us to purchase. We will
wait for the County Council to lead on this outcome.

G17 Joint assessments of the needs of vulnerable
people (children and adults), using mobile technology to
support workers in the field.

Amber
31/12/2005

Amber
31/12/2005

Comment: HDC has received funding from the Department of
Work and Pensions to enable piloting of home visits by benefit
assessors supported by mobile technology. If this is successful this
may be extended to include other services both within the Council
and in co-operation with other agencies. A deep link is also
provided on the Health pages of our website to the Cambridgeshire
County Council's care services page.
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk/Community+and+People/Health.htmhttp:
/iwww.huntsdc.gov.uk/Community+and+People/Health.htm

If already 'green’ on R18, R19, G16 & G17 above please
comment on

E15 Agreed baseline and targets for customer
satisfaction, including improvement in numbers of
users/carers who said that they got help quickly (BVPI
57).

Otherwise you may leave this row blank.

Comment:

R20 Email and Internet access provided for all Members
and staff that establish a need for it.

Green Green
01/10/2005 01/10/2005

Comment: All members and most employees have email and
internet access, although internet access for staff is subject to
approval from their line manager. The ICT helpdesk manager has
now developed the 'Computer Usage Policy Document' which
addresses this objective.

11

85




Outcome And Transformation Area Description Status at 31/12/2005 Status at 31/03/2006
R21 ICT support and documented policy for Green Green
home/remote working (teleworking) for council members 30/06/2005 30/06/2005

and staff.

Comment: This will be addressed as a Council wide policy in the
near future. It will address all factors such as Health and Safety as
well as the IT aspects. Still ongoing.

R22 Access to home/remote working facilities to all
council members and staff that satisfy the requirements
set by the Council's published home/remote working
policy.

Green
01/11/2005

Green
01/11/2005

Comment: All members currently have the technology to work from
home and dial-up for online access. 200 employees also have
home working capability. Still ongoing.

G18 Establishment of e-skills training programme for
council members and staff with recognised basic level of
attainment (e.g. European Computer Driving Licence,
British Computer Society Qualification "e-Citizen").

Green Green
30/09/2003 30/09/2003

Comment: We have now established ECDL as part of our
corporate training programme and it is open to staff and members.

If already 'green’ on R20, R21, R22 & G18 above please
comment on

E16 Agreed targets for baseline and efficiency savings
arising from the introduction of new ways of working.

Otherwise you may leave this row blank.

Comment: Our e-Government Strategy is driven by our customer
service strategy, and the focus is on improving customer service
rather than reducing costs. However, we are implementing
measurement mechanisms to capture efficiency savings in order to
meet the requirements of ‘Delivery Efficiency in Local Services’.

R23 Self-service or mediated access to all council
services outside standard working hours via the Internet
or telephone contact centres (i.e. available for extended
hours outside of 9am-5pm Monday to Friday).

Amber
01/02/2004

Green
31/03/2006

Comment: Our Call Centre opened on 22/09/05. The opening
hours have been extended to 8am-6pm Monday to Friday and
Saturday opening may be considered if demand is sufficient.
Services will continue to be migrated to the Call Centre in 2006.
The Council's website is generally available 24/7.

R24 Implementation of a content management system
(CMS) to facilitate devolved web content creation and
website management.

Green Green
31/07/2004 31/07/2004

Comment: The Content Management System went live in Summer
2004.

G19 Adoption of ISO 15489 methodology for Electronic
Document Records Management (ERDM) and
identification of areas where current records
management policies, procedures and systems need
improvement to meet the requirements of Freedom of
Information (FOI) and Data Protection legislation (see
www.pro.gov.uk/about/foi/map-local.rtf).

Green
31/12/2005

Green
31/12/2005

Comment: EDM — Electronic Document Management system is
being rolled out corporately. A request tracker is currently being
used for FOI and an information audit is planned for Mid 2005.
Record Management procedures are currently being put in place.

G20 Conformance with level AA of W3C Web
Accessibility Initiative (WAI) standards on website
accessibility (see www.w3.org/WAI).

Green
31/07/2004

Green
31/07/2004

Comment: Our new website conforms to AAA level of accessibility
and the CMS enforces this conformance.

G21 Compliance with Government Interoperability
Framework (e-GIF), including the Government Metadata
Standard (e-GMS) (see www.egifcompliance.org &
www.govtalk.gov.uk).

Amber Amber
01/01/2003 01/01/2003

Comment: This is a requirement in all our specifications. We will
purchase e-gif compliant business systems as existing systems are
replaced and new ones are acquired. Our website currently
conforms to the Cambridge standard for metadata which draws
upon the e-GMS standard. We are currently tagging our website
pages with specific e-GMS and LGCL tags in addition to those
mentioned above.

12

86




Outcome And Transformation Area Description

Status at 31/12/2005

Status at 31/03/2006

If already 'green' on R23, R24, G19, G20 & G21 above
please comment on

E17 Agreed baseline and targets for efficiency savings
based around improved accessibility of services and
information.

Otherwise you may leave this row blank.

Comment:

R25 Online publication of Internet service standards,
including past performance and commitments on service
availability.

Green
01/03/2005

Green
01/03/2005

Comment: Usage plus availability information is now available.

R26 Monitoring of performance of corporate website, or
regional web portal, between 2003/04 and 2005/06 in
order to demonstrate rising and sustained use, as
measured by industry standards including page
impressions and unique users.

Green
01/12/2000

Green
01/12/2000

Comment: We currently analyse website usage including page
impressions and unique users. These have shown a steady
increase in usage over the last 4 years from 400 visits a day to over

1300.

G22 Establishment of internal targets and measures for
customer take-up of e-enabled access channels.

Green
30/11/2005

Green
30/11/2005

Comment: The Customer Service Strategy sets out a range of
targets that will be developed as Customer First Programme rolls
out. The performance targets for our Call Centre are as follows:
Average speed of answer = 80% answered in 20 seconds, 5%
abandoned rate, 80% service level average.

G23 Adoption of recognised guidelines for usability of
website design (see www.laws-project.org.uk).

Green
31/07/2004

Green
31/07/2004

Comment: Our new website meets all recommended usability
standards/guidelines including use of access keys, navigation
positioning and content styling. Work is in progress to educate
contributors in Plain English standards.

If already 'green’ on R25, R26, G22 & G23 above please
comment on

E18 Agreed baseline and take-up targets for migration of
local authority business to e-access channels (e.g. web,
telephone contact centres, Interactive Digital TV, mobile
telephone) by 2005/06, including efficiency savings.

Otherwise you may leave this row blank.

Comment: HDC will fulfil this requirement as our business process
improvment methodolgy ensures we capture the benefits.

R27 Systems in place to ensure effective and consistent
customer relationship management across access
channels and to provide a 'first time fix' for citizen and
business enquiries, i.e. using a common database, which
holds customers records, to deliver services across
different channels, and enabling joined-up and
automated service delivery.

Green
22/09/2005

Green
22/09/2005

Comment: The Customer Relationship Management (CRM) was
deployed in September 2005 with some integration to the back
office, and includes elements of workflow. Systems have been
implemented and roll-out of processes is being controlled. Roll-out
of further services and processes will take place over time.

R28 All email and web form acknowledgements to
include unique reference number allocated to allow
tracking of enquiry and service response.

Amber
09/06/2003

Amber
09/06/2003

Comment: Our current web and CRM architectures do not give us
the ability to do this automatically. Where mediated access is
provided, for example via the Call Centre, then a unique reference
number will be included in any replies. Similarly, service requests
passed from the Call Centre to the Back Office for processing will
have a unique service identification.

13

87




Outcome And Transformation Area Description Status at 31/12/2005 Status at 31/03/2006
R29 100% of email enquiries from the public responded Green Green
to within one working day, with documented corporate 31/12/2005 31/12/2005

performance standards for both email
acknowledgements and service replies.

Comment: We are in the process

of developing response

standards and will implement appropriate processes and
monitoring and reporting mechanisms in the next nine months.

G24 Integration of customer relationship management
systems with back office activity through use of enabling
technology such as Workflow to create complete
automation of business process management.

Green
01/06/2005

Green

01/06/2005

Comment: The Customer Relatio
deployed in June 2005 with some
include elements of workflow (e.g

nship Management (CRM) will be
integration to back office, and will
Anite@work and Biztalk).

G25 Facilities to support the single notification of a
change of address, i.e. a citizen should only have to tell
the council they have moved on one occasion and the
council should then be able to update all records relating
to that person to include the new address.

Green
01/06/2005

Green
01/06/2005

Comment: Change of address is

a service in Phase 1 of the call

centre, to be implemented from September 2005 onwards.

If already 'green’ on R27, R28, R29, G24 & G25 above
please comment on

E19 Agreed baseline and improvement targets for the
percentage of public enquiries about council services
resolved at first point of contact and efficiency savings
resulting from investment in customer relationship
management and workflow technology.

Otherwise you may leave this row blank.

Comment: HDC will fulfil this requirement. A key element of
implementing our CRM and associated technology is to capture

these measures.

14

88




Section 2 - Change Management (self-assessment)
Authorities are asked to provide information on advisory good practice outcomes
relating to the internal organisation and management practices of the council that

are required to help deliver the people,

systems and service management changes

necessary for e-government. Information supplied here will be used to inform
national policy, but does not fall within the remit of the December 2005 target.

Change Management Area

Status at 31/12/2005 |Status at 31/03/2006

e Appointment of people to the following key local
e-government functions in your Council (see
http://www.idea-knowledge.gov.uk/idk/aio//206757):

i) Member & officer e-champions

Green Green
01/09/2001 01/09/2001

Comment:These positions have long been established within
Huntingdonshire. In addition there is a Members Customer First
Advisory Group.

ii) e-government programme manager

Green
01/09/2001

Green
01/09/2001

Comment:This position has long been established within

Huntingdonshire.

iii) customer services management

Green
30/11/2004

Green
30/11/2004

Comment:We have recruited a Call Centre Manager and anticipate
a subsequent re-organisation of management roles and
responsibilities to reflect the focus on all customer service delivery
channels.

o Inclusion of competency development of the above key
functions and training for staff affected by e-Government
projects, within the Council's workforce development
planning (for more information about the e-capacity
Building Programme see
http://www.lamip.org/MicroSites/eCapacityBuilding/Pages
/TemplateUser.aspx?PageType=StandardContent&XSL=
standardcontent&Key=1)

Green Green
30/11/2001 30/11/2001

Comment:We have planned, resourced and recruited staff with the
necessary project, change and technical skills (Business Analysts,
Project Managers and Support roles). Relevant front-line service
staff are involved in delivering the projects. These staff, along with
the Customer First, have attended a tailored Business Process
Improvement course. The Council also ran a corporate Change
Management training course for all Directors and Managers in
2004.

e Establishment of an e-delivery programme board

Green
01/09/2002

Green
01/09/2002

Comment:Established at start of the Programme. Membership
includes Directors and representatives of partner organisations.

e Use of formalised programme & project management
methodologies (e.g. PRINCE2, MSP) to support
e-delivery programme

Green Green
30/11/2001 30/11/2001

Comment:The Customer First team is trained in PRINCE 2 and
MSP methodologies. Team tools include the use of a bespoke
Intranet issues and risk management system.

15

89




Change Management Area Status at 31/12/2005 Status at 31/03/2006
o Documentation/agreement of corporate risk Green Green
management strategy for roll-out of local e-government, 30/10/2003 30/10/2003

including regular review of risk mitigation measures

Comment:The Customer First team developed and uses a
bespoke Intranet issues and risk management system, which is
regularly reviewed and updated. Risks are also managed through
the programme governance structure that is in place. The Council’s
risk manager and internal audit are also consulted where
appropriate.

e Use of customer consultation/research to inform
development of corporate e-government strategy

Green
30/06/2003

Green
30/06/2003

Comment:Members approved the Customer Service Strategy in
2003. Customers were consulted during the writing of this
document, including phone and face-to-face surveys to evaluate
service needs. The development of longer-term plans for future
consultation is required.

e Establishment of policy for addressing social inclusion
within corporate e-government strategy

Green
30/06/2003

Green
30/06/2003

Comment:Addressing the needs of different types of customers
and communities has been a key consideration in developing the
corporate e-Government Programme. More specifically, the Council
has played a key role with the County Council in the development
of a network of broadband access points across our villages. This
resulted in a Beacon Council award in 2003/4 for ICT and Social
Inclusion.

e |dentification of the specific needs of the most
disadvantaged groups and exploring how Information
Communication Technologies (ICT) can help to address
these needs (see
http://www.socialexclusion.gov.uk/page.asp?id=583)

Green
27/03/2003

Green
27/03/2003

Comment:Huntingdonshire is a relatively affluent District. However,
we have identified the need for access to ICT in rural areas and
have implemented several Learning Points which give general
access to IT and IT learning to disadvantaged groups. This is
supported by tuition from the Library Service. As part of a
partnership initiative, we have also implemented a Community
Learning Centre on the Oxmoor estate which gives residents
access to IT technology which they can use to develop their skills
for work or further education.

e Appointment of officer(s) to lead on corporate
governance of information assets and information
legislation (e.g. Freedom of Information Act), including
information sharing and data quality audit procedures

Green
30/06/2005

Green
30/06/2005

Comment:An Information Manager has been recruited.

e Establishment of Public Services Trust Charter re the
use of personal information collected to deliver improved
services, including data sharing protocol framework (see
http://www.dca.gov.uk/foi/sharing/toolkit/lawguide.pdf &
http://www.govtalk.gov.uk/documents/eTrustguidegovtalk.
rtf) and designation of an Information Sharing Officer

Green
30/06/2005

Green
30/06/2005

Comment:This is a focus for the Information Manager who is: -
Working on information and data sharing protocols across the
council and also for use in the call centre. - Developing a fair
processing statement to be communicated to the general public
about how the council process their data in a fair manner.

e Establishment of partnerships for the joint (aggregated)
procurement of broadband services

Green Green
30/05/2004 30/05/2004

Comment:The Council is a partner to the County Council on the
development and roll out of the Cambridgeshire Community
Network.The Council will be procuring CCN connections from the
County and has also helped to ensure that its rural access points
(HELP) are linked to CCN.

16

90




Change Management Area Status at 31/12/2005 Status at 31/03/2006
e Engagement with intermediaries re addressing issues Green Green
of take up and efficiency in the delivery of e-government 30/06/2005 30/06/2005

services (e.g. Citizens Advice Bureaux) and including
intermediaries component of Government Connect (see
http://www.govtalk.gov.uk/documents/intermediaries_poli
cy_document.pdf &
http://www.govconnect.gov.uk/ccm/portal)

Comment:The Council has already stated its intention to consider
joining up with local partners/agencies in a main Customer Service
Centre. Broadband access points have been or are planned to be
installed in Council community shops shared with other agencies
such as the CAB and Connexions.The Council is keen to promote
the use of e-services to all partners in the community. Through
working with Parishes, County, Community Groups and others, the
Council will be looking to join up the promotion of e-services with all
of its rural broadband access points.

e Compliance with BS 7799 on information security
management

Green
30/06/2005

Green
30/06/2005

Comment:The Council recently commissioned external consultants
to review our ICT Strategy and a report was produced which
addressed information security. As a result we have now set up
security forums with different parts of the organisation to consider
the recommendations from the review. The Council will seek to
comply with this policy as far as is practical. We have also recruited
an Information Manager who is responsible for information security
and he will be reviewing the Council's processes.

e Implementation of Benefits Realisation Plan for
delivery of local e-government programme strategic
objectives

Green
30/06/2005

Green
30/06/2005

Comment:The Programme is committed to undertaking Benefits
Realisation Management. External consultants have been used to
help advise on and pilot an appropriate methodology, and the
benefits to be delivered from Customer First will be built into our
new corporate performance management framework.

e Completion of mapping of Local Government Services
List transactions against approved security levels (0-3)
(see http://www.esd.org.uk/standards/Igsl/Igsl.doc &
http://www.authentication.org.uk/levels.asp &
http://e-government.cabinetoffice.gov.uk/assetRoot/04/00
/22/40/04002240.doc)

Green Green
30/06/2005 30/06/2005

Comment:This will be applied in the future to all online
transactions on our recently re-launched website (to include online
payments by early 2005). It will also be addressed as part of the
implementation of the new call centre and associated processes.

e Planned compliance to HMG Security and
authentication frameworks through commitment to
citizen, employee and volunteer account registration in
Government Connect (see
http://www.govconnect.gov.uk/ccm/portal)

Red
30/11/2004

Amber
15/01/2006

Comment:Following a recent independent review of its Information
Security framework, including the establishment of an information
asset register, risk analysis and BS7799 gap analysis, the Council
intends to regularly review these areas. The development of
Government security and related policies will also continue to be
monitored. The Council will seek to comply with these policies as
far as is practical and when a proven business case and/or
potential service improvements have been identified. We are also
monitoring recent developments in Government

Connect/Authentication.
e Compliance with an independent trust scheme Red Amber
approval process designed to provide assurance for 30/11/2004 15/01/2006

individuals and companies using or relying upon
e-business transactions (see www.tscheme.org) and
which will work with Government Connect (see
http://www.govconnect.gov.uk/ccm/portal/)

Comment:For e-payments the Council will be using reputable third
party Payment Service Providers (PSPs). The security credentials
of the supplier will form part of the Council's decision to use them or
not. Compliance with trust schemes could form part of the selection
criteria in the future as more online services are deployed. Our
website uses SSL technology to verify it as trusted by an
independent verification company. At this stage the Council is not
planning to work with Government Connect.

17

91




Change Management Area Status at 31/12/2005 Status at 31/03/2006
o Use of Government Connect (see
http://www.govconnect.gov.uk/ccm/portal/) to support:
i) personalisation & registration for services Red Red
categorised at security levels '0' and '1' through the 31/12/2005 31/12/2005

citizen account

Comment:Please note that the end of 2007 date for the
implementation of Government Connect is arbitrary and is only
included as the ESD Toolkit software will not allow submission of
the IEG unless a date is supplied. The Council will closely monitor
the development of Government Connect and its growing relevance
to local authority services. As and when a sound business case
and/or service needs that align with Government Connect are
identified, then we will adopt Government Connect services as
appropriate.

ii) adoption of Unique IDentifiers (UIDs) and
associated standards, as designated in
Government Connect

Red Red
31/12/2005 31/12/2005

Comment:Please note that the end of 2007 date for the
implementation of Government Connect is arbitrary and is only
included as the ESD Toolkit software will not allow submission of
the IEG unless a date is supplied. The Council will closely monitor
the development of Government Connect and its growing relevance
to local authority services. As and when a sound business case
and/or service needs that align with Government Connect are
identified, then we will adopt Government Connect services as
appropriate.

iii) the bereavement journey & closing of accounts
(see
http://www.cabinetoffice.gov.uk/regulation/pst/proje
cts/mad/bereave.asp)

Red
31/12/2005

Red
31/12/2005

Comment:Please note that the end of 2007 date for the
implementation of Government Connect is arbitrary and is only
included as the ESD Toolkit software will not allow submission of
the IEG unless a date is supplied. The Council will closely monitor
the development of Government Connect and its growing relevance
to local authority services. As and when a sound business case
and/or service needs that align with Government Connect are
identified, then we will adopt Government Connect services as
appropriate.

iv) citizen & business authentication for services for
services categorised at security levels 0-3

Red
31/12/2005

Red
31/12/2005

Comment:Please note that the end of 2007 date for the
implementation of Government Connect is arbitrary and is only
included as the ESD Toolkit software will not allow submission of
the IEG unless a date is supplied. The Council will closely monitor
the development of Government Connect and its growing relevance
to local authority services. As and when a sound business case
and/or service needs that align with Government Connect are
identified, then we will adopt Government Connect services as
appropriate.

v) registration & authentication of employees for
internal and cross-agency services

Red Red
31/12/2005 31/12/2005

Comment:Please note that the end of 2007 date for the
implementation of Government Connect is arbitrary and is only
included as the ESD Toolkit software will not allow submission of
the IEG unless a date is supplied. The Council will closely monitor
the development of Government Connect and its growing relevance
to local authority services. As and when a sound business case
and/or service needs that align with Government Connect are
identified, then we will adopt Government Connect services as
appropriate.

18

92




Change Management Area Status at 31/12/2005 Status at 31/03/2006
vi) corporate approach to collection of e-payments Amber Amber
30/10/2005 30/10/2005

Comment:Project is underway to deliver a corporate e-payments
solution. Issues with software have prevented application going

live.

vii) cross agency secure transactions (Government
to Government)

Red
31/12/2005

Red
31/12/2005

Comment:Please note that the end of 2007 date for the
implementation of Government Connect is arbitrary and is only
included as the ESD Toolkit software will not allow submission of
the IEG unless a date is supplied. The Council will closely monitor
the development of Government Connect and its growing relevance
to local authority services. As and when a sound business case
and/or service needs that align with Government Connect are
identified, then we will adopt Government Connect services as
appropriate.

viii) account structures for citizens, businesses,
property, voluntary & community bodies, schools

and parishes

Red Red
31/12/2005 31/12/2005

Comment:Please note that the end of 2007 date for the
implementation of Government Connect is arbitrary and is only
included as the ESD Toolkit software will not allow submission of
the IEG unless a date is supplied. The Council will closely monitor
the development of Government Connect and its growing relevance
to local authority services. As and when a sound business case
and/or service needs that align with Government Connect are
identified, then we will adopt Government Connect services as
appropriate.

ix) common XML schema and frameworks for
performance management, Local Strategic
Partnerships and Local Area Agreements (where in

Red
31/12/2005

Red
31/12/2005

Comment:Please note that the end of 2007 date for the

place)

implementation of Government Connect is arbitrary and is only
included as the ESD Toolkit software will not allow submission of
the IEG unless a date is supplied. The Council will closely monitor
the development of Government Connect and its growing relevance
to local authority services. As and when a sound business case
and/or service needs that align with Government Connect are
identified, then we will adopt Government Connect services as
appropriate.

x) GC Register (see

http://www.govconnect.gov.uk/ccm/woss-demo/the-

programme.en)

Red Red
31/12/2005 31/12/2005

Comment:Please note that the end of 2007 date for the
implementation of Government Connect is arbitrary and is only
included as the ESD Toolkit software will not allow submission of
the IEG unless a date is supplied. The Council will closely monitor
the development of Government Connect and its growing relevance
to local authority services. As and when a sound business case
and/or service needs that align with Government Connect are
identified, then we will adopt Government Connect services as
appropriate.

19

93




Change Management Area Status at 31/12/2005 Status at 31/03/2006
xi) GC Exchange (see Red Red
http://www.govconnect.gov.uk/ccm/woss-demo/the- 01/09/2005 01/09/2005

programme.en)

Comment:Please note that the end of 2007 date for the
implementation of Government Connect is arbitrary and is only
included as the ESD Toolkit software will not allow submission of
the IEG unless a date is supplied. The Council will closely monitor
the development of Government Connect and its growing relevance
to local authority services. As and when a sound business case
and/or service needs that align with Government Connect are
identified, then we will adopt Government Connect services as
appropriate.

e Government Connect (see
http://www.govconnect.gov.uk/ccm/portal/) back office
connection in place (Department Interface Server)

Red Red
01/09/2005 01/09/2005

Comment:Please note that the end of 2007 date for the
implementation of Government Connect is arbitrary and is only
included as the ESD Toolkit software will not allow submission of
the IEG unless a date is supplied. The Council will closely monitor
the development of Government Connect and its growing relevance
to local authority services. As and when a sound business case
and/or service needs that align with Government Connect are
identified, then we will adopt Government Connect services as
appropriate.

e Enable Directgov (see www.direct.gov.uk) to deeplink
into service pages on local authority websites, by
providing & maintaining URL data, based on Local
Government Service & Interaction lists, standard
schemas and formats, as directed by the Local Directgov
programme (see
http://www.localegov.gov.uk/localdirectgov/ieg5)

Amber
01/11/2005

Green
28/02/2006

Comment:Links provided to Direct.gov by the end of February
2006.

e Reciprocal connection to Directgov (see
http://www.direct.gov.uk) from corporate website and
partnership portal(s)

Green Green
31/01/2002 31/01/2002

Comment:We are actively co-operating with Local Direct.gov and
will provide reciprocal links from our website from the end of March
2006.

e Introduction of Digital Interactive TV services (see
http://www.digitv.org.uk)

Red Red
01/09/2005 01/09/2005

Comment:At this stage this is not a priority for the Council as there
is no evidence of local demand for this service. We are monitoring
the outputs of national projects and our use of Content
Management System should allow us to re-present this data via
digital TV if required. Please note that the end of 2007 date for the
implementation of Government Connect is arbitrary and is only
included as the ESD Toolkit software will not allow submission of
the IEG unless a date is supplied.

e Establishment of dedicated telephone contact centre(s)
services

Green
22/09/2005

Green
22/09/2005

Comment:A dedicated call centre has been implemented and now
handles over 25% of all Huntingdonshire District Council calls.
Further processes are due to be rolled-out in a staged plan.

e Compliance with Freedom of Information Act 2000,
including responding to requests for information from
individuals within a reasonable time period (see
http://lwww.lcd.gov.uk/foi/foidpunit.htm &
http://www.pro.gov.uk/recordsmanagement/access/defaul
t.htm)

Green
01/01/2005

Green
01/01/2005

Comment:We are now complying with the Freedom of Information
Act 2000 and have a process in place for responding to requests
within the statutory timeframe. We have also recruited an
Information Manager who is responsible for this process.

20

94




Change Management Area Status at 31/12/2005 Status at 31/03/2006
e Regularly-maintained link from Local Land & Property Green Green
Gazetteer (LLPG) to National Land & Property Gazetteer 11/07/2002 11/07/2002

(NLPG) (see http://www.nlpg.org.uk)

Comment:We are a level 1 LLPG and link to the NLPG on a daily
basis. Our streets are maintained to level 3. The LLPG underpins
or is directly linked to 15 datasets within HDC. The LLPG has been
used as one of the pilot local authorities for the ODPM Valuebill
National project.

e Local Land & Property Gazetteer (LLPG) linked to
Customer Relationship Management (CRM) systems

Green
22/09/2005

Green
22/09/2005

Comment:Data is currently updated from the NLPG on a regular
basis. We are currently implementing an improved process to
provide daily updates from HDC's LLPG.

e Connection to National Land Information Service Red Red

(NLIS) at Level 3 (see http://www.nlis.org.uk) 31/01/2004 31/01/2004
Comment:Integration of software in progress.

e Introduction and maintenance of an online service Green Green

directory for Children's services for professionals working 31/12/2005 31/12/2005

with children & young people, and allowing public access
where possible (for further information see
http://www.dfes.gov.uk/isa)

Comment:We will provide deep links to Cambridgeshire County
Council's web site from our web site once the information is
available. Also Cambridgeshire Portal will provide a one stop
source of information.

21

95




Section 3 - BVPI 157

Councils are asked to complete the following table using the definition of Best Value
Performance Indicator (BVPI) 157 for Electronic Service Delivery (Corporate). You
are required to validate your local list of interactions against Version 2.01 of the
Local Government Services List (LGSL) developed by local authority members of
the esd-toolkit (www.esd-toolkit.org). All totals and percentages shown should be
cumulative.

Actual
BVPI 157 Interaction Type Forecast 01/02 02/03 03/04 04/05 05/06
average IEG5 o =
% e-enabled . .
position at 31
December
2005
Providing information:
o Total types of interaction e-enabled 99 % *0 0 ° 12 ° 97 ® 106
® % e-enabled ® 0.00 % ® 0.00 % ©1132% |091.51% |e 100.00 %
Collecting revenue:
o Total types of interaction e-enabled 96 % 0 0 0 o1 o1
® % e-enabled ¢ 0.00 % ® 0.00 % ¢ 0.00 % e 100.00 % |e 100.00 %
Providing benefits & grants:
o Total types of interaction e-enabled 92 % °0 0 e 0 °0 0
® % e-enabled . ° ° .
Consultation:
e Total types of interaction e-enabled 98 % LX) o0 e 9 ® 26 ® 26
® % e-enabled ® 0.00 % ® 0.00 % ©3462% | 100.00% |e 100.00 %
Regulation (such as issuing
licenses): 90 % 0 0 e 0 ® 10 o 12
e Total types of interaction e-enabled e 0.00 % ¢ 0.00 % ® 0.00 % ©83.33% |e100.00 %
® % e-enabled
Applications for services:
e Total types of interaction e-enabled 96 % o0 o0 e 10 ® 62 e 74
® % e-enabled © 0.00 % © 0.00 % e 1351 % |083.78% |e 100.00 %
Booking venues, resources &
courses: 88 % 0 0 0 o1 o1
e Total types of interaction e-enabled ¢ 0.00 % ¢ 0.00 % ¢ 0.00 % ¢ 100.00 % |e 100.00 %
® % e-enabled
Paying for goods & services:
o Total types of interaction e-enabled 91 % 0 0 0 8 *13
® % e-enabled ¢ 0.00 % ¢ 0.00 % ¢ 0.00 % ©61.54% |e100.00 %
Providing access to community,
professional or business networks: 98 % o0 o0 o0 ®6 e 38
o Total types of interaction e-enabled © 0.00 % © 0.00 % © 0.00 % ©75.00% | 100.00 %
® % e-enabled
Procurement:
o Total types of interaction e-enabled 86 % 0 o0 0 o4 o4
® % e-enabled ¢ 0.00 % © 0.00 % ¢ 0.00 % © 80.00% | 80.00 %
Total:
o Total types of interaction e-enabled 97 % 0 0 e 31 e 215 e 245
® % e-enabled ¢ 0.00 % ¢ 0.00 % ©1260% |087.40% |e99.59 %

22

96




Section 4 - Access Channel Take-Up
In order to demonstrate public take-up of the main e-access channels that you are
investing in, you are asked to complete the table below detailing actual and forecast
figures for numbers of e-enabled payment transactions and change of address
notifications. Planning authorities should also complete the Local Service Website
line for planning applications. It is important that e-access channel investment and
rollout also facilitates accompanying improvements in the corporate management
capability required to monitor and collect such statistics. Click on the light bulb icons
for industry definitions of page impressions and unique users.

Actual Forecast
E-enablement & Main E-Access Channel 03/04 04/05 05/06 06/07 07/08
Take-Up
Local Service Websites
e Page impressions (annual) 2,192,000 6,734,135 5,100,000 7,500,000 8,000,000
e Unique users, i.e. separate individuals visiting | 127,000 112,903 261,000 125,000 135,000
website (annual)
o Number of e-enabled payment transactions 0 0 5,000 10,000 15,000
accepted via website
o Number of change of address notifications 0 0 1,000 1,000 1,000
accepted via website
o Number of planning applications accepted via |26 42 65 95 130
website (including through the Planning Portal)

Comment: We take payments for planning applications through the
planning portal. Data for 2003/2004 includes Huntsleisure.org, HDC's

website for leisure and events.

Telephone

(i.e. telephone interactions where officers can
access electronic information and/or update
records on-line there and then, including
interactions in contact centres)

o Number of e-enabled payment transactions 9,000 15,000 21,000 27,000 30,000
accepted by telephone

e Number of change of address notifications 2,000 3,000 4,000 5,000 6,000
accepted via telephone

Comment: From 2006 staff in our Call Centre will be able to deal with

payment transactions. Notification of change is now administered centrally

via our Call Centre and 243 of Notifications of Change have been dealt

with from the Call Centre since October 2005.

Face To Face

(i.e. front-line operations where officers can
access electronic information and/or update
records on-line there and then, including
interactions at reception desks, One Stop Shops
&amp; home visits)

e Number of e-enabled payment transactions 1,100,000 1,250,000 1,350,000 1,400,000 1,450,000
accepted via personal contact
o Number of change of address notifications 2,000 1,000 1,000 0 0
accepted via personal contact

23

97




Actual

Forecast

E-enablement & Main E-Access Channel
Take-Up

03/04

04/05

05/06

06/07

07/08

Comment: High volume for payments includes leisure centres. We
anticipate face to face notification of change of address decreasing as
other channels become more popular.

Other Electronic Media
(e.g. BACS, text messaging)

o Number of e-enabled payment transactions
accepted via BACS

524,000

600,000

500,000

750,000

800,000

o Number of e-enabled payment transactions
accepted via text message or other electronic
form

e Number of change of address notifications
accepted via other electronic media

Comment: High volumes include Direct Debit payments for council tax. We

do not accept payment transactions via text messages or other electronic
forms and this is not a priority for HDC at the moment.

Non Electronic
(e.g. cash office, post)

o Number of payments accepted by cheque or 116,000 120,000 122,000 125,000 125,000
other non-electronic form

e Number of change of address notifications 2,000 2,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
accepted via non-electronic form

Comment: We anticipate that the number of payments by this channel will

plateau as other channels become more popular. We also accept that
certain customer groups will still continue to prefer non electronic

transactions.

24

98




Section 5 - Local e-Government Implementation Expenditure
Councils are asked to provide a summary of current and forecast expenditure on
implementing electronic government up to 2007/08. This should include the
standard elements in the table below and brief commentary on the use of IEG
money. For 2005/6 onwards, please include best estimates of revenue and capital
expenditure even though the council may not yet have officially approved the
budgets. (Please note that implementing e-government expenditure refers to
investment designed to e-enable local services and to transform their accessibility,
quality and cost-effectiveness in line with the 2005 target. Cyclical spend related to
the maintenance of the existing ICT infrastructure should not be included):

Backward Look (£) Forward Look (£)
Programme Resource 01/02 to 04/05 05/06 06/07 07/08
03/04
e |[EG capital grant 400,000 350,000 150,000
Comment:
o ODPM Local e-Government Support & 0 0 0 0 0
Capacity Programme capital grant
Comment:
e your council's nominal pro rata share of ODPM 40,000 0 0 0 0
Local e-Government Partnership Programme
capital grant allocated in your area
Comment:
e financial contribution from public-private 0 0 0 0 0
partnerships
Comment:
e resources being applied from internal revenue |2,220,000 1,069,000 2,087,000 452,000 46,000
and capital budgets to implement e-government
Comment:Subject to review after end of year closedown.
e other resources (e.g. training) (please specify) |0 |0 |O |0 |0
Comment:
o ODPM e-Innovations Fund capital grant 0 |0 |0 |0 |0
Comment:
o financial contributions from other sources of 656,000 0 129,333 0 0
Government funding, such as the Invest to Save
Budget (ISB), EU funding
Comment:
TOTAL 3,316,000 1,419,000 2,366,333 452,000 46,000
25

99




9

JUaWwwo)
0] 0| 0] of o] 0] 0| 0 oyoads soIMISS @
USIYM JO ‘aull} SARONPOId
JUawwon
9A0Qe PaJaA0D JOU SBIDUBIDIYD
o_ o_ o_ o_ o_ o_ o_ 0 juswainooid-a BuNo-ssoi) e
JUaWwwo)
o_ o_ o_ o_ o_ o_ o_ 0 ol10ads a2InIeS @
:ydIym Jo ‘Jusweindoid-9
‘JUawwon
aA0ge PaJanod
o_ o_ o_ o_ o_ o_ o_ 0| 1ou sapuUBIDIYe SBINIBS 8)el0dioD e
JUswwo)
o] 0| 0] of o] o] 0| 0 sjuswAed-o o
JUsawwon
o_ o_ o_ o_ o_ o_ o_ 0 juswiinioal-a e
:YaIym Jo ‘saoinies ayelodio)
a|geyseo uieb a|geysed uieb a|geysed a|geysed
yolym Jo - [enuue pajoadxy yolym Jo - |lenuue pajoadx3 yolym Jo - uieb [enuuy yolym Jo-- uieb [enuuy suie) Aouaioiyg
80/10 10/90 90/S0 S0/¥0

(3) o0 premioy

(3) o077 psemyoeg

‘sainbly Bunenojes ul yoddns Jo 821n0s Aoy e JaYo OS|e S8J0N 9|qel 8y} Ul S8}ISqam palsi| 0] SHUIT
"JUBWIUIBA0S) |B007T 4o} (NLT) 810N |eoiuyoa] Aouaio3 go0z Atenuepr ay) ul jno 18s 10bue) suieb Aousiolye ayj jsuiebe juswanaiyoe
Bulnsesw 03 yoeoidde ay} yum ubije o} paubisap usaq sey juswularob-a |Boo| wouy suieb Aousiolys Jo uonenojes ay |

suiec) Aouaioiy)g swwelbold JUsWuUIdA0D)-3 |B20T - 9 UOI}IIS

100




LC

000°9v- 000°2SP* £€€°99¢€2- 000°62€L-

13N - SNIVO ADN3ID1443 V10l

“ainjipuadxa [ejded jau Jo jJoedwi SNUBASI Sy} SSO| SpPeW SSIOUSIOIYS SNUSBASI S} 89 PjNOM SpeW 8q 0} Uole|ndjed

pl[eA Ajuo ay] "S}SOD SnuaAal pue s}so9 [e)ded usam)ag UONOUlSIP OU SaxeW }I 8snesaq ssajbuluesw si}| “dpew aq 0} Sa1oudIIys 10} saniunuoddo Jofew
juasaud os|e pjnom swwelbold ay) jeyy pasiubooal osje sem 1 ybnoyyje ‘pus jey} 0} Juswisanul ue Buiag se HOH Ul Udas uaag sAemje sey pue ‘9oIAIas
Jawoisnd ul sjuswanoldwi Juediubis ayew 0} alisap e AQ USALIP SEM }| "SBM JOABU puUe ‘@sed ay) Jou si siy| Aoualoiys Jo auo si swwelboid Juswuianob-a
ay) Joj ajeuonel ay) jeyy saldwi ) 8snedaq Buipesisiw si )| “ssajbuiueaw pue Buipesjsiw yjog si JON — sules) Aouaiolyg [ejo],, JO uolendjed ay :juawwod

alnyjipuadxa

00091 000°¢SY €€€°99¢€°C 000'6L¥'L| uonejusws|dwi juswuianob- SS37

SSO¥UO

0 0 0 0 0 0 000°2L 00006 - SNIVO AON3ID1443 V10l

Auswiied SA0QE paJon0d

o_ o_ o_ o_ o_ o_ o_ 0 JOU S8I0UBIDIYS SNOBUE|IBDSI
‘JUsawwo’

o_ o_ o_ o_ o_ o_ o_ 0 suonoesuel|

'9/500¢ Buunp syyeusg
ui joid ABojouyoa} ajiqow Jno Aled ‘4dg/Idg aAIsuaixa Buimojo} Jaquiaydag ul 813uad [[eo Mau Juawaldwl| :suonoe Aay "Bunjiom ajigow pue |NYD Buipnjoul
‘ABojouyoay mau Buionpoujul pue sassasold Buioey Jawolsnd (Hdg/1dg) Buuesuibus-al/buinoidw Aq 891A18S JBWO)SND pue AjAionpold aaoidw| ;Juswwion

9A0CE PaJoA0D JOU SBIOUSIOIYD

0 0 0 0 0 0 000°¢. 00006 awiy aAponpoud Bumno-ssoi e
9|qeysed uieb a|geysed uieb a|qeysed a|qeysed
UoIym Jo'-* |enuue pajoadxg UoIym Jo'-* lenuue pajoadx3 YoIym Jo - uieb |enuuy UoIym Jo - uieb |enuuy sules) Aouaio3
80/10 £0/90 90/S0 S0/¥0
(3) 3007 paemioy (3) %007 premoeg

101



This page is intentionally left blank

102



Agenda Item 10

SAFETY ADVISORY GROUP 1ST MARCH 2006

SAFETY ADVISORY GROUP
(Report of the Advisory Group)

1. INTRODUCTION
1.1 The Advisory Group met on 1st March 2006 and Councillors Mrs D E
Collins, J W Davies (Chairman), A Hansard and L M Simpson were

present.

1.2 Also in attendance were P Corley, J Craig, Mrs T Davidson, P
Duerden, Miss S Jackson, Mrs H Lack and Mrs C Rowland.

1.3 The Staff Side representatives in attendance were C Sneesby and K
Lawson.
1.4 Apologies for absence from the meeting were submitted on behalf of

S Richardson and Mrs G Smith.

15 The report of the meeting of the Advisory Group held on 16th
November 2005 was received and noted.

2. MEMBERS’' INTERESTS
2.1 No declarations of interest were received.
3. DEFIBRILLATORS

Defibrillator Update

3.1 Members were reminded that a successful application had been
made by the Health and Safety Adviser on behalf of the District
Council to the British Heart Foundation, for 50% funding towards the
purchase of nine defibrillators for use by First Aiders at Council
premises. Funding had been received for seven defibrillators
following a lengthy application process supported by a Consultant
Anaesthetist (as Medical Director) and the resuscitation department
at Hinchingbrooke Hospital, as well as the Ambulance Service and
District Council First Aiders. Regrettably the due to an unsuccessful
bid for a defibrillator for Pathfinder House and Castle Hill House was
unsuccessful but Members noted that the District Council had agreed
to fund a further defibrillator for use in these buildings.

3.2 The Health and Safety Adviser reported that a programme for training
of District Council first aiders in the use of the defibrillators was
underway which also included their annual CPR refresher training.
This training would be undertaken twice yearly.

3.3 Members noted that in order to comply with criteria set out by the
British Heart Foundation (BHF), the Health and Safety Adviser had

103



3.4

3.5

3.6

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

agreed to prepare an annual submission to the Foundation on behalf
of the Medical Director for the scheme.

The Chairman of the Group had attended a formal presentation of the
defibrillators by the BHF to the District Council on 30th January 2006.

In recognition of the hard work and time spent on this project, the
Chairman placed on record the Group’s gratitude to the Health and
Safety Adviser, the Executive Councillor for Leisure and all those
involved in the successful implementation of the defibrillators at
District Council premises. In addition, the Health and Safety Adviser
agreed to write formally to the British Heart Foundation and
Hinchingbrooke Hospital to express the Group’s gratitude for their
help in the process.

Demonstration

Members were given a demonstration, during which they were
acquainted with the functions of a defibrillator. It was noted that
although the unit incorporated its own electronic safety checks, the
Caretakers had agreed to check visually the battery life of the
defibrillator located at Pathfinder House on a daily basis. Similar
checks were to be made by staff at all the Leisure Centres and
Country Park.

SMOKING

The Health and Safety Adviser drew Member's attention to a number
of initiatives which had been arranged by the District Council prior to
the Government’s recent decision to ban smoking in public and work
places and which had been designed to highlight the health issues
resulting from smoking.

Having been reminded of the success of the Health and Safety Week
which had taken place in October 2005 and had highlighted smoking
as a health issue, the Group were pleased that as a direct result of
the involvement of the Primary Care Trust - Stop Smoking
Huntingdonshire (SSH) initiative, two employees had given up
smoking entirely and five more were well on the way to reaching their
goal.

Members were acquainted with future activities based around the
reduction of smoking at Council premises, which included plans to
support the national No Smoking Day to be held on 8th March 2006
along with “Help to Quit” which would be supported by SSH. In
addition the Group were advised that following the creation of a No
Smoking Policy by the Health and Safety Authority, it was hoped that
the District Council would apply for a Silver Award as part of the
National Clean Air Awards which recognised organisations who were
committed to the health and wellbeing of its employees and
customers.

In discussing the proposed extension of the Council’s no smoking
policy in its offices to Council vehicles, Members noted that policy

104



5.1

5.2

5.3

6.1

6.2

6.3

7.1

changes would subsequently be submitted for approval to the
Employment Panel and Employee Liaison Advisory Group.

AD-HOC SAFETY INSPECTION

Consideration was given to a report by the Head of Administration
outlining the observations and comments made by the Group during
ad-hoc safety inspections of the Call Centre located at Speke House,
St. Ilves and the activity of tree felling, Little Paxton held on 14th
December 2005 and 20th February 2006 respectively.

Having been acquainted with the comments made during each of the
inspections, Members placed on record their commendation to those
involved for their high standards of Health and Safety and
acknowledged formally how well run and organised each of the
activities and locations were.

Having regard to the arrangements for future inspections of the

Council’'s premises, the Group agreed the following dates and times —

. ad-hoc safety inspections 4th July 2006 — 9.15am — 12 noon;

* annual safety inspection — 23rd November 2006 — 9.15am
onwards.

ACCIDENT/INCIDENT REPORTS
District Council Employees

The Group received and noted a report by the Head of Personnel
Services giving details of 16 accidents involving employees along
with two accidents and one incident involving non-employees, which
had taken place since the previous meeting.

With regard to concerns raised by the Vice-Chairman, the Group
suggested that those accidents arising in the Operations Division
should include a more thorough narrative in the “action taken”
column, which in addition to highlighting the need for employees to
take care of their own health and safety should include the
circumstances of the accident and any preventative measures
already in place. Members were advised that even though a majority
of accidents took place in the Operations Division, a pattern with
regard to the causes of accidents had not been identified. However
relevant training would be put into place if this was noted in the future.

Leisure Centre Employees

The Group also received a report by the Leisure Centre’s Health and
Safety Co-ordinator containing details of accidents which had been
reported at the leisure centres since the last meeting of the Group.
TRAINING

The Group were acquainted by means of a report by the Head of

Personnel Services outlining training courses which had been held
since the previous meeting of the Group.

105



8.1

8.2

MEMBERS TRAINING

In receiving and noting a report by the Head of Personnel Services,
the Group were acquainted with arrangements for Member training
specifically designed to highlight elected Members responsibilities
outlined in the Health and Safety Policy with regard to ensuring that
health and safety considerations were taken into account in the
decision making process.

It was noted that courses had been arranged for 1st March 2006 and

11th April 2006, both of which were to be held at 5.30 pm at the
Council Offices.

J W Davies
Chairman of the Advisory Group

106



